

Abba Hillel Silver Collection Digitization Project

Featuring collections from the Western Reserve Historical Society and The Jacob Rader Marcus Center of the American Jewish Archives

MS-4787: Abba Hillel Silver Papers, 1902-1989.

Series I: General Correspondence, 1914-1969, undated. Sub-series A: Alphabetical, 1914-1965, undated.

Reel	Box	Folder
81	28	1791b

Zionist Organization of America, 1937-1938.

Western Reserve Historical Society 10825 East Boulevard, Cleveland, Ohio 44106 (216) 721-5722 wrhs.org

MINUTES OF MEETING OF Z.O.A. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE, HELD ON SUNDAY, MARCH 27TH, 10:30 A. M. AT THE PENNSYLVANIA HOTEL

Judgo Morris Rothonborg (in the Chair), Heinrich Abramowitz, PRESENT : Isaac Aller, Adolph Brinberg, Israel S. Chipkin, Laurence Cohen, Charles A. Cowon, Harry P. Fierst, Jaco Fishman, Abraham Goldberg, Isidoro A. Hassin, Isaao Imbor, Arnold K. Isroeli, Samuel Judenfround, veri Samuel Kanarvogel, Abraham Krumbein, Dr. Harry J. Levine, Louis Lipsky, Morris Margulies, David Podelsky, Elias Preiss, Hon. Hyman J. Reit, Charlos Ress, Monahom Ribalow, Bernard G. Richards, Louis Rimsky, Moses Rubinson, Jochanon I. Rudavsky, Jacob Schaffer, Irving Schatzborg, Rabbi Harry E. Schwartz, Abraham Spicebandlor, Joshua Sprayragon, Judge Nathan Swoodler, Robert Szold, Mayor ". Weisgal, Lee Wilson; Dr. Francos Burneo, Dorchestor, Mass.; A. B. Cohon, Scranton, Pa; Jacob Cohon, Havorhill, Mass .; Col. Bonj. F. Evarts, Holyoko, Mass .; Dr. David Foldman, Phila., Pa.; David Frankol, Tronton, N.J.; Jacob Ginsburg, Newton Upper Falls, Mass.; Rabbi Wm. Groonfield, Watorbury, Conn.; Jacob B. Hoffman, Phila., Pa.; Harold G. Jaffor, Mt. Vornon, N.Y.; Aaron Lovinstono, Nowark, N.J.; Judgo Louis E.Lovinthal, Phila., Pa.; Judgo William M. Lowis, Phila., Pa.; Louis Lindorman, Now Havon, Conn.; Morris Mallove, Now London, Conn.; Max Nigrosh, Mattapan, Hass .; Harry A. Pinos, Newark, N.J.; John Rissman, Chicago, Ill .; Dr. H. Robbins, Nashua, N.H.; Honry Rosonbaum, Plainfield, N.J.; Charles Rosongarton, Waterbury, Conn.; Dr. Julius M. Rosonthal, Monticollo, N.Y.; Mrs. John D. Safor, Washington, D.C.; Julius Stone, E. Boston, Mass.; Mrs. Mosos P. Epstein, Mrs. David do Sola Pool, Mrs. Robocca Shulman, of Hadassah.

and the

Excuses for non-attendance were received from Harry J. Kahn, Rabbi I.H. Levinthal, Dr. Harry Projector, Dr. A.J. Rongy, Dr. Solomon Smelin; Ralph Bass, Mattapan, Mass.; Joseph Goldborg, Woreestor, Mass.; Rabbi H.R. Goldborger, Alteona, Pa.; Rabbi Selemon Goldman, Chicage, Ill.; Isidere Hershfield, Washington, D.C.; B. Herwich, Chicage, Ill.; Rabbi Edward L. Israel, Baltimere, Md.; Wm. M. Katz, Chicage, Ill.; Pref. Gustave Klausner, St. Louis, Mo.; Samuel Kranzberg, St. Leuis, Me.; Dr. M. B. Lichtenstein, Pittsburgh, Pa.; Mortimer May, Nashville, Tenn.; Jacob Rabinevitz, Bosten, Mass.; Aaren Riche, Les Angeles, Cal.; Louis Resenberg, Heusten, Texas; Simon Shetzer, Detroit, Hich.; Dewey D. Stone, Taurton, Mass.; Joe Weingarten, Heusten, Texas; Senator Jacob Weiss, Indianapelis, Ind.

The mosting was called to order at 11 A.M. with Judge Rothenberg in the Chair. Judge Rothenberg welcomed the large number of out-of-town members present, and also informally welcomed the members who attended the Actions Committee meeting in London. He then called upon Hr. Margulies to render his report.

SECRETARY'S REPORT:

Lir. Largulies reported that since the last mosting of the Administrative Committee on January 16th, the Executive held four mostings. The first mosting took place on January 19th, when the Secretary reported on his visit to Chicage a few days proviously and contrasted the present situation in that city with that during his visit in October. The city has now been divided into eight functioning districts with the leaders of the

¥ -- i

community showing a greater awareness of their Zionist responsibility and a full measure of cooperation. The results are reflected in a greatly increased membership and regular monthly remittance of dues to the mational office. Their goal this year is 2500 members which is double that of the proviews year.

In addition, the Secretary attended the Midwest Regional Conference at Chicago where the Midwest territory was definitely outlined and a program of activity adopted. In conjunction with the Conference, a memorial moting was held for the late Max Shulman, at which an euclogy was delivered by Mr. Lipsky, and a message read from Dr. Wise. The meeting decided to commemorate his memory by the establishment of a Hebrew Library at the Hebrew Theological College in Chicage, and a Kfar Shulman in Palestine. In connection with these projects, the local Chicage Zionists requested to have the advice and approval of the national office. It was the consensus of epinion of the Executive that this offert should not be undertaken without the approval of the J.N.F. and that if possible the fund raising for the memorial should be deferred until after the local Welfare Fund campaign is concluded.

The meeting protected to a further discussion of the report of the Survey Committee which, since the last meeting of the Executive, had been circulated among the members of the Executive and Finance Committee. In compliance with the suggestion of the Survey Committee, the Chairman of the Finance Committee submitted a budget drawn up after January 1st, based on the estimated of income and expenditures from October to January. It was decided that all observations made by individuals or Committees on the report of the Survey Committee shall be circulated within ten days among the members of the Executive and Finance Committees, and that a meeting of the Executive be called by the Chairman as seen as possible thereafter, for the special consideration of the report.

.

Accordingly, the following meeting of the Executive, on February 9th, was devoted entirely to the further consideration of the report of the Survey Committee. After a full discussion, it was decided that a joint meeting be arranged between the members of the Survey Committee and the Finance Committee, at which time the Survey Committee report be considered in the light of the detailed discussion at this meeting of the Executive, by an enlarged Survey Committee which shall be asked to bring in not mercly critical and evaluative, but also constructive suggestions, for the future conduct of the Organization.

* * * * * * * * * *

The third meeting of the Executive was held on March 2nd, at which it was decided to recommend to the Administrative Committee that the next Z.O.A. Convention be held beginning Saturday evening, July 2nd, through Tuesday, July 5th. A communication was submitted from the Zionist Federation of Great Britain and Ireland requesting action on the following resolution adepted by the British Federation:

> "That this Board would welcome a solution for the future of Palestine which would provide for the establishment of a Jewish Dominion within the British Cormonwealth of Nations."

In view of the importance of this resolution the Executive decided that the matter be referred to the Political Committee and the discussion deforred matil after the return from London of Dr. Wise and Hr. Lipsky.

r

Dr. Goldstein, who in the absence of Dr. Wise, served as Acting Fresident, and in that capacity presided at the mosting, called for reports of the various committees and departments of the Organization.

Mr. Ress, as Chairman of the Survey Committee, stated that in accordance with the decision of the provious meeting, his Committee had been reorganized and consists in addition to Messrs. Ress, Siegel and Thau, of the following members: Dr. Goldstein, Mr. Lipsky, Mr. Rocker, Mr. Chipkin, and Mr. Szold. The enlarged committee had one proliminary meeting and at this state could merely report progress.

In the absence of Mr. Rocker, Chairman of the Finance Committee, Mr. Maltin, submitted a proliminary financial statement. It was decided that the Finance Committee be requested to present a budget for the remainder of the current year. This budget, with an up-to-date and comprehensive statement, will be submitted to this meeting of the Administrative Committee.

Dr. Bornstein read a detailed report of the activities of the Palestine Department. The Chairman observed that even when the immigration situation is at its lowest ebb, the Palestine Department is performing a useful function.

In the report on The Now Palostino submitted by Lr. Caplan, it was shown that The New "alestine is published at present in 31,250 copies per issue, and that as the membership increases, the figure automatically increases. (The circulation now is 32,000). It was pointed out that formerly 8,000 copies were mailed directly to U.P.A. contributors, for which the U.P.A. was billed the actual cost of printing. Dr. Goldstein stated that it might provo to have been unwise on the part of the U.P.A. to have discontinued this service, especially when the cost was so nominal, and unwise on the part of the Z.C.A. to have pormitted these 8,000 persons to be deprived of Zionist propaganda. He suggested therefore that the Executive recommend to the U.P.A. the resumption of this service. In this connection, attention was called to a resolution of the last Convention, directing the Administration to soo to it that U.P.A. constributors of \$25 and ovor receive The New Palestine. It was therefore decided that Dr. Goldstein be asked to call the attention of the U.P.A. Administration to the resolution of the Convention and to the request of the Executive that arrangements bo made by the U.P.A. to carry out the Convontion decision. It was succested also that negotiations be entored into with Hadassah and the Order Sons of Zien with a view to their memberships receiving The New Palostinc.

Hr. Imber on behalf of Masada reported that during the past two months ten new chapters had been organized, and that there had been a general increase of 20%, during this period, in the proviously established groups. The total membership of Masada is 1626, the largest increase in membership being expected immediately before the Convention. Attention was called to the fact that Masada had reached the point where several of its groups had graduated into the senior 2.0.A. ranks, and that former Young Judaea groups were new graduating into Masada. Moreover, a committee had been appointed to work out a plan wheroby Lasada will benefit from Young Judaea, and the Z.O.A. from Lasada. It was urged by various mebers of the Executive that the Lasada members of over 25 years of age should be requested to join the sonior $Z_*O_*A_*$ ranks.

Mr. Cohom reported for Avukah, stated that the present membership of Avukah totals about 1,100, representing an increase of several hundred over last year, and that it must be borne in mind that Avukah periodically suffors a loss in momborship of those who leave the Campus upon graduation. Six new chapters have been added and five more are expected before the yoar is over, the total at present being 46 chapters. Preparations have begun for the annual Palestine Followship whereby it is hoped to send one or more students to Fab stine for an entire year's sojourn, and offerts are being made to exploit the followship competition for an increase in chapters and members. In this connection, the Chairman proposed that the Frosident of the Z.O.A. be placed on the Committee of Judges which awards the followship in order to have a clesor tio-up between Avukah and the Z.O.A. In addition, arrangements are being made by a number of How England Avukah chapters for a joint fellowship, and there was a possibility of similar action boing taken by the Chicago Chapter. It was urged that some method be devised to bring the Avukah alumni into the 2.0.A., though it was observed that there are many former Avukah members in the ranks of Zionist Districts throughout the country. It was succested also that the J.N.F., the Z.O.A. and Hadassah contribute to a cormon fund which will onable several youn; persons to spond a year in Palestine, in the hope that when they return they will more than repay the original investment, oithor as loaders in their respective localities or as part of the civil service in the Zionist novement. The Executive felt that a special mosting should be devoted to a discussion of the youth problem in an attempt to find a solution, since a radical change in structure, approach and mothed of procedure is very essential.

* * * * * * * * * *

The last meeting of the Executive was held on Earch 15th. Attention was called to the fact that Mr. Loib Jaffe, Managing Director of the Teren Hayesed, would spend a few days in New York, encoute to Canada where he would direct the Koren Hayesed Campaign.

The attention of the Executive was also called to the impending arrival of Mr. Alexander L. Easternan, chief foreign correspondent for the London Daily Herald, official British Labor organ, who would be propared to lecture on Palestine during his stay in America. The Secretary reported that arrangements had been made whereby Mr. Easternan will be available to Districts at a cost of \$50 per lecture, plus expense.

The question of the subsidy to the Central Zionist Kubbutzim was raised again, and it was decided to appoint a Committee to communicate with Palestine and to ascertain all the facts.

The Secretary reported on the attempts that are being made to organize new Regions and to strongthen existing Regions. In this connection, it was urged that U.P.A. directors be asked to devote more time to the needs of the Z.O.A., which will also redeund to the benefit of the U.I.A. It was decided that the Secretary work out a plan of dividing the country into Regions, and submit an estimate as the cost necessary for the maintenance of Regional Organizations on an officiently functioning basis.

Continuing the procedure of departmental reports, brief statements were submitted covering the activities of the Department of Education and Les Yiddishe Folk.

On the matter of Zionist publications, the Executive decided that the Finance Committee, in consultation with and the cooperation of the staffs of both Des Yiddishe Folk and The New Palestine conduct a canvass of the possibilities of obtaining additional subscribers and report their recommendations to the Executive. Dr. Goldstein reported that in accordance with the decision of the provious meeting of the Executive, he had conferred with the U.P.A. with a view to restoring the U.P.A. contributors to The New Falestine subscription list.

The final report submitted was that by Er. Hondol Fisher covering the activitics of the Jowish National Fund. It was pointed out that the efforts of individual Z.O.A. members and Districts are not fully reflected in the figures submitted by Hr. Fisher, and it was therefore suggested that the Executive Director of the J.N.F. together with the Secretary of the Z.O.A. work out some method whereby the Z.O.A.'s participation in the J.N.F. shall be mere accurately recorded.

-omborship:

Concerning membership, ir. Margulies stated: "As of March 25th, 1938, the membership reached a total of 31,373, comprising 4,120 new members enrolled since the beginning of the current fiscal year, October 1, 1937 and 10,654 renewals. The balance, 16,599, represents members who paid dues after January 1st, and whose renewals are due before the end of the fiscal year.

"Since some of the Districts have not as yot remitted to the national office, the full amount of dues collected, the actual figures of these who have renewed their membership is larger.

"The number of Districts throughout the country new totals 265, located in 198 cities in 38 states -- an increase of 7 Districts since October 1st.

"The improved membership status is also reflected in the income from membership. Thus, as of March 16, 1938, the membership income amounted to \$48,449 as compared with \$43,232 for the same date last year. New York takes the lead in the membership enrollment, although not in propertion to the size of its Jewish community.

"Bue to the establishment of uniform dues, the net average income from each member has increased from \$2.08 last year, to \$2.55 this year.

Gonoral Observations:

"The membership results during the past six years show that the membership enrollment has doubled on the basis of a three-year cycle. Thus, whereas in 1932 there were approximately 8,000 members, at the end of 1935 the membership totaled approximately 16,000. Towards the end of 1938 we will double this membership and have more than 31,000 enrolled. Barring unforseen circumstances we may look forward to a membership in 1941 -- the end of another three-year cycle -- of approximately 60,000.

"To achieve this, the method of organization will have to undergo some changes, with emphasis laid on a new phase of organization activity. Between 1932 and 1935, we concentrated all our efforts in building up the existing Districts and establishing new ones. Since 1935, we strengthened these Districts with the result that some of them have doubled and others tripled their membership. If we are to succeed in doubling the membership between 1938 and 1941, a large number of new units will have to be established, since the existing Districts would have reached the highest point in their numerical strength for their efficient functioning.

"The creation of new Districts can be offected only through the establishment of Regions, which would be in a position to utilize local efforts to this end.

Regions:

٩.

"At the last Convention we finally took definite action with regard to the establishment of Regions. We have now as follows: Hidwest Region with headquarters in Chicage, which is making gratifying progress. The acting Chairman is Mr. Robert Hess of Hidwaukee. The Chairman of the Region was the last Mr. Max Shuham. We are organizing a State Region in New Jersey, with Mr. Heary Resembaum of Plainfield as Acting Chairman. It is expected that New Jersey will show a great improvement over last year before the fortheoming Convention. Last Sunday we succeeded in organizing the first new Region in the last five years, in the Ohio Valley, comprising part of Ohio, part of Indiana and the State of Kentucky. Rabbi James G. Heller has been elected Chairman of the new Region. The headquarters of the Ohio Valley Region will be in Cincinnati.

"There is now in the process of being organized another Region of Upper Ohie and Eastern Michigan, with Detroit as its headquarters. Er, Leurence Crohn, Chairman of the Detroit Zionist District, and Rabbi Leon Feuer, Chairman of the Tolede Zionist District, are in charge of the work. In addition we have the following established Regions: The Seabeard Region with headquarters in Baltimere, Ed., of which Er. Daniel Ellison is the Chairman; the Tri-State Region, with littsburgh as headquarters, of which Rabbi Lichter is the Chairman; the New England Region, with headquarters in Beston, of which Er. Ralph Bass is the Chairman; the Connecticut State Region, of which Er. Ralph Bass is the Chairman; the Texas Region, with Lr. Charles Spiner as Chairman.

"In Greater New York there are new three functioning Regions: The Long Island Region, of which Mr. Merdecai Konowitz is Chairman, with headquarters at Jamaica, which shows the best improvement of any Region throughout the country; and of course, the best improvement in Greater New York; the Brooklyn Region with Mr. Louis J. Mess as Chairman; and the Brenx Region with Mr. Meyor Levy as Chairman. "In the membership this year New York is in the lead. The volume of propaganda work this year has been larger than that for any previous year covering the same period. 45 outstanding speakers furnished by the matienal office addressed 313 meetings in 108 communities covering 26 states. This report refers only to these meetings in which we have cooperated and meetings for which we provided the speakers. This does not include these meetings numbering in the many hundreds held throughout the country and addressed by local speakers. In this connection the Regions have been mest helpful having furnished the Districts, especially in the smaller communities, with speakers, and helped to arrange meetings throughout the country.

"In addition, the national office has arranged successful tours. At this moment two tours are being conducted by eight personalities and lecturers, in the New England territory alone by Mr. van Paassen and Rabbi Sandrow. The provious tours arranged include these by Abraham Goldberg, in the New England Region; Murice Samuel, Midwest Region, Wm. I. Siegel, New England Region; Mrs. Ida Silverman, New England Region; Abraham Goldberg; Tri-State Region; Morris Margulies, Chicage; Dr. Ludwig Lewischn, in scattered sections.

"Considering the present recession in the economic situation throughout the country, which cannot fail to have its effect on the membership enrollment, it is significant that despite the establishment of a uniform dues, the membership work is continuing on a satisfactory basis. However, deligent and effective efforts are necessary both on the part of the Zienist Districts as well as members of the Administrative Committee, in order to maintain the present tempo in the membership enrollment."

The Chairman called for commonts on the Secretary's report which he thought was very interesting and encouraging.

Mr. Proiss observed that the membership total as reported by the Secretary included 4,000 new members and 10,000 renewals, thus far this year. He inquired as to the number of members in good standing last year at the same time and what steps are needed to place the remaining 15,000 members in good standing in order that the budget may be covered.

Mr. Margulies replied that from the financial point of view the income from membership exceeds by \$5,000 that for the corresponding period of last year. Every effort is being made to intensify the membership activities, in order to secure before the next Convention, an increase in the membership over last year. Mr. Margulies added that all the delinquent members will be circularized upon consultation with the respective districts.

REPORT ON ACTIONS COLMITTEE MEETING IN LONDON:

In view of the lateness of the hour and the fact that the public meeting at which the delegates to the Actions Committee meeting in London will speak was scheduled for 2:30 P.M. the members of the Administrative Committee decided to defor consideration of the other items on the agenda, and to proceed immediately with the reports on the Actions Committee sessions.

Before calling upon Mr. Lipsky, Judge Rothenberg observed that he could not recall any international gathering in recent years which assembed under such difficult conditions as the Actions Committee sessions in London. Not only were our own affairs in a perloxing state, but the tragic events in Austria occured just at the time when the Actions Committee was in session. Nevertheless he expressed the hope that the delegates would bring some word of cheor to stimulate American Zionists at this critical time. It was with great pleasure therefore that he called upon Mr. Louis Lipsky to present his report,

REPORT OF MR. LOUIS LIPSKY :

"As the Chairman observed, in every instance whenever representatives of the ZOA have gone over to Europe, they have been plunged into a situation quite different from that which prevailed in the United States. It has always been necessary for those who go over to adjust themselves to a new set of circumstances, a new mood and a new method of approach. The lecision with regard to the Actions Committee meeting was made within forty-eight hours. Many were of the opinion that the meeting should be held in Jerusalem, but owing to the unusual circumstances and the expected departure of the new Technical Commission for Palestine, it was decided to convene the Actions Committee in London.

"There wase two questions that confronted the Zionist movement: One, the most important was the economic question, and the other dealt with the political situation. The effect of the political uncertainty is revealed in the economic situation. However, the economic life of Palestine is the target of the severest attacks of all. I think very few people are alarmed by the disorders as such, since the Government has undertaken very energetic methods to suppress the disorders, the effect of the disorders and the effects of the vaccilating Government's political policy which are seriously homporing the economic effort of the Jews - these give cause for concern. And so far as the Keren Hayesod is concerned, it is quite apparent that the ordinary budget adopted at the last Congress is insufficient for purposes of emergency.

"The Keren Hayesod has practically absorbed its income up to date in the operations of the first five months, and a shortage will arise because the Keren Hayesod is compelled to undertake efforts that are normally required of the Government and which the Government does not do. The Keren Hayesod has to meet every emergency with the means at its disposal, so that unemplay-ment falls as a burden upon the Executive or the Keren Hayesod. Thus the Executive has to do the things which in the United States is done by the government. Credit has to be established. Funds have to be accumulated. As a matter of fact, many of the things that are now undertaken in Falestine have to be supplied with mational funds in order that credit may be maintained. The result is that at the end of this year, the Executive will in all possibility, be facing a deficit which will have to be covered. It is already making endeavors to cover this deficit through loans. The credit of the Keren Hayesod in London is very good. (Out the credit that we have in London has to be reinforced by added financial support in the way of addi-tional income. Otherwise the credit will have no basis.

"The Actions Committee gave due attention to these economic and financial matters. Wery interesting reports were submitted by Eliezer Kaplan and Dr. Ruppin, and it should be a source of satisfaction and comfort to all Zionists to know that during this period of uncertainty, during this period of attack on the front of Jewish life, the Jews have maintained their position with considerable strength and resourcefulness. Although many of the ordinary enterprises are suffering a setback, every point, every position that the Jewish people have occupied at the beginning, they still maintain. The Port of Tel Aviv is a symbol of the energy of the Jews in Palestine in the midst of these disturbances. They have built up something of permanent economic value in the Port. And not only in the matter of the Port but in various parts of Palestine, systematically with a tremendous

nin ast.

Server Carlos

amount of courage and with a daring which very few people expected of Jows living under such circumstances, we have built up points that have extended the operations of the Jowish National Home. We have strengthened every position that we held in industry and commerce and made provision for the unemployed.

"It was felt at the Actions Committee meeting that some action ought to be taken by the Zionists of the world to balance what has been done by our poeple in Palestine. The amount of taxes and assessments being paid by every individual in Palestine is above the normal. They have accumulated a fund for unemployment; they have made sacrifices for the Keron Hayesod and the Jewish National Fund to an extent that would strike most people in the United States as being astounding. They are contributing about 12% of their income in extraordinary solf-assessments. They (the workmon) are giving, for example, 12 days of their labor for the unemployment fund. They are taxing themselves for the Port at Tel Aviv and doing everything that is humanly possible in order to maintain the structure of the work in Palestine . It was the decision of the Actions Committee that the organized Zionists of the world - without interfering with the campaigns of the Keren Hayesod, Koren Kayemoth --- are to be called upon to make a self-assessment equivalent to a certain extent to that being made by every Jew in Palestine. This will indicate to the Jows of Palestine that the Zionists of the world are standing shoulder to shoulder with them, not only in the ordinary work of collecting for the Keren Hayesod and Jewish National Fund, but also in the extraordinary contributions that they are making to maintain the front at this time.

"The other important subject of the meeting was the political situation. There has been to date no formal step on the part of the Mandatory Government with regard to a proposal in connection with a Jewish State in a part of Palestine.

"The delay is action on the part of the British Gevernment was not mercly due to negligence, but a delay caused by certain conflicting political views. It appeared that after the Zurich Congress certain Jewish elements exercising an influence upon the political factors in England had created the impression that the Jews, as well as the Arabs, as well as the whole public opinion in general was adverse to the establishment of a Jewish State. Through the Foreign Office an impression was conveyed to the Cabinot of the English Government that it might be an advisable thing under the circumstances to reconsider the whole matter of the future of Palestine. All the efforts that were made in order to establish peace between the Arabs and the Jews were taken as indication of the fact that in all probability if the Jows are ready to make terms with the Arabs why should not the English themselves make terms with the Arabs, and under cover of the peace that was to be made with the Arabs, an arrangment could be arraved at which would place the situation in a wholly different position with regard to the Mandate and with regard to the proposal for a Jewish State, and would enable England as a matter of fact to get rid of the whole issue of the Jewish National Home. In other words, there arese in the Foreign Office and the Colonial Office a differense of opinion. The difference of opinich was reflected in the White Paper. The White Paper presents a trial in the Foreign Office and the Colonial Office to arrive at a compromise as to how to proceed with regard to the Jewish National Home. The White Paper

indicated that so far as England was concerned they were playing a waiting game. It was one of the most actute documents that was devised by the Foreign Office and the Colonial Office to enable England to do whatever she pleases. It enabled the Commission to de anything they please, and whatver decision they arrive at, the Government would make the final decision and settle the matter in accordance with this new circumstance. In all these proceedings the Colonial Office stood determined to carry through the plan that we submitted to the League of Nations during the summer. Ormsby-Gore has been doing his best to maintain that plan.

"It was cuite obvious to any one attending the meeting in London that the Executive was placed in a very enbarrassing and awkward position. The resolution adopted by the Zionist Congress in Zurich authorized the Executive to carry on negotiations with the Mandatory Government, with a view to securing definite proposals with regard to a Jewish State in a part of Palestine. It was assumed, as a matter of course that the Executive in pursuing these negotiations would have to take for granted that a proposal based on the Peel report could safely be submitted to the Zionist Congress. As a rule it is understood that anything a negotiating committee reports may be rejected. But it was assumed that anything they offered to negotiate would be accepted. But another mood was created throughout the political world, as if it were perfectly in order, after the Congress adopted a resolution for negotiation -- it was perfectly in order for Zionists and non-Zionists, and Jews who have nothing whatever to do with the movement, to come along and say that under no circumstances would any proposal be accepted if it was submitted to the Zionist Congress. To create such a position meant practically andermining the authority of the Executive in the course of its negotiations.

The Executive found itself on all sides surrounded by forces who were convinced that it is their business to carry on propaganda in order to destroy any possibility of there coming out of these nogotiations any proposals for a Jewish State. I think that in that respect, in respect to the action taken by the Committee in London, something was done to rectify a situation which was becoming impossible. In the name of the Executive, in the address of Dr. Weizmann, and in the address of Ben Gurion, certain fundamental declarations were made, and the Actions Committee by its acceptance of these declarations without demar, practically gave its approval of these declarations. It is the intention of the Exexutive-this was approved by the Actions Committee-to secure from the British Government definite proposals with regard to a Jewish State, on the basis of the Pool report, with such improvements as may be secured, and to submit that to the Congress. In the meantime the Executive will continue its policy of protecting and maintaining our rights under the Mandate and until some substitute is devised by the Congress the Mandate shall be inforced. In the meantime it is assumed as a matter of course, as a matter of loyalty and discipline in the Sionist movement, that all clements in the Zionist movement forego the luxury of debating in advance, any idea or proposal that may come from the Mandatory Government for a Jewish State.

"I think that the remarks made by Ussishkin at the end of the Actions Committee meeting reflect the whole attitude of the Actions Committee. It stands to reason that when we are facing very serious combinations in world politics, and when something may happen which will destroy the very foundations on which we are laboring in Palestine, it is of the utmost importance that we Zionists know where we are going, and that we

defend our position together, and that there be no two ways to reach the end, but the one way decided on by the Congress --- and the Congress has decided that we are forced by circumstances in the direction of consider-ing the proposal for a Jewish State.

"Anybody who was at the sessions in London for a week or two, and close to the scene of operations in Europe, will realize that the world is undergoing a change, and that all concepts of international donduct previously accepted, as a matter of course, have been disturbed by what is going on; that the English Government itself, one of the most powerful Governments in modern history, is suffering confusion and uncertainty of purpose with regard to its own destiny, and that the whole Buropsen struggle calls for a new adjustment in rolations, and in these adjustments where lawlessness seems to be upheld and all the forces of ov 1. and injustice have command, it is of the utmost importance to know there we stand and that we do not allow ourselves to be caught unprepared. It should be a matter of commonsense for the Jowish people to understand, that we in the Zionist movement are not living in a world far away, but we are living in a world where every act of Government here, there and elsowhere affects us seriously, and we can only build our life on a platform on which life itself is being enacted. In Palestine there is grouing up a deep understanding of the realities of the situation. They realize that their own strongth and the resources available are a weighty factor in the situation, and are more important than words.

Mr. Lipsky then referred to the remarkable achievement in the settlement of Hammuta, which he stated was of the greatest importance to the Jewish future in Palestine.

The Tel Aviv Port is a political fact. It does not compare with New York Harbor or the Harbor at Cherbourg, but this dock represents <u>strength</u>. It is from that dock that ships can go out. It is from that dock that men who ply the small boats can make their exit and go out on the sea. If you have that, you have something much more important than any agreement.

"The meeting of the Actions Committee served a vitally important purpose. It has made the Ziomist Organization, which is the most important instrument of Jewish life, a workable body. It has not allowed the Zionist Organization to become an anarchistic group of people -- with every group doing as it likes. In all the world nationalities are consolidating their resources and making everything available for the central purpose, and if we do the same thing through the Zionist Organization and consolidate everything that we have, then we will have something which we can operate with. I think that we can safely say that if only the Jews outside of Palestine will serve the cause as it is served by those who are in Palestine, then we have nothing to fear. It is to that end that the Executive has thought it proper that a branch of the Executive of the Jewish Agoncy be ostablished in the United States, for the purpose of building up our political defenses in behalf of Palestine. That matter will be submitted to a meeting of the Executive of the IOA and then will come up before the Administrative Committee. It is felt throughout Europe, not only with respect to the Lionist movement, but also with megard to all matters of Jewish interest, that the Jews of America have a very important part to play in regard to what is going to happen to the Jewish people in the next decade. There is no Jowry in

-11-

Europe that is free, -- nowhere -- not even in England, and the only free Jewry there is in the world is right here in the United States.

And just as in 1914 we launched a movement here which had its echo all over Europe, so in the things that are to be done in the next few years, the Jews of America, in accordance with the demands of the situation will play a decisive role. We have to provide the means; we have to create the channels of action, -- and the Jews of America become the authors of the destiny of the Jewish people.

Deploring the lack of unity and consolidation in the American Ziunist movement, Mr. Lipsky said:

"When we were called upon in London to report how many organized Zionists there were in America, we had to enumerate then all --Zionist Organization of America, Mizrachi, Poale Zien, Hadassah -- and if we add them altogether we have a formidable army. We have over 120,000 organized Zionists in the United States if we take them altogether, but those 120,000 organized Zionists are not an army. Each has its own little corner and separate plank on everything that goes on in Jewish life. If we are doing anything of any consequence in meeting our responsibility as Zionists, first of all, we should see to it that some order is created in the strength that we have built up. There is no doubt that these 120,000 people represent the very essence and quintescence of everything that is national in Jewish aspirations in America, and could command the situation if we were united.

"At any rate, in London there was unanimously found a way to bring about understanding and a line for Zionist activity that will bring about order in the situation and eliminate momething that is very distressing, and I hope that we in the United States will do the same."

REPORT OF MR. JACOB FISHMAN:

"It became clear as soon as we arrived in London to attend the sessions of the Actions Committee that no sensational events of dramatic value were to be expected. We have been accustomed to expect from many meetings explosive happenings, but with the exception of many enlightening facts and stock-taking of what has happened since the Zionist Congress, the Actions Committee has not produced anything very sensational. But despite this early disappointment over the lack of anything of a sensational nature, there is no question whatsoever that after the sessions took place, everybody felt that it was a much needed gathering, and that it was productive of a great deal of good.

"I will try to give you some of the sidelights on the sessions, and toll you perhaps some of the things that you may not have been familiar with up to this time.

"The principal discussion naturally centered on what took place since the Zurich Congress. There were a number of delegates who felt that something was being kept back from us. It was mostly a question of bad news. We thought we did not get all the bad news in store for us. Fortunately Dr. Weizmann laid this thing to rest when he presented his report. While the sessions of the Actions Committee were going on, Dr. Weizmann was very busily engaged during that period seeing members of the British Cabinet." The speaker referred to the political changes going on in London and the effect upon the Palestine situation.

"Now, one of the things that we learned at the Actions Committee, which perhaps was not so well known was the extent of the deep intrigue on the part of the so-called peace-drivers, or peace party. We knew, naturally, that the peace drive was inaugurated by a number of people, but we thought that at least some sort of sincerity animated those people, and that they really and truly believed that that narrow peace, such as perhaps would be able to spare us partition or other unwelcome happenings, could be arrived at. And the picture which was revealed at the Actions Committee, with the correspondence open to us, was distressing to the lowest degree."

Mr. Fishman related that the Executive itself was at one time dragged into useless peace maneuvers when it could not ignore an invitation from Dr. Magnes, who stated that the Mufti himself and other influential Arabs are willing to make peace on some sort of an acceptable basis. There were outlined a number of stipulations, the very first of which was that a sovereign State in Palestine be established within a specified time, followed by a number of other stipulations, from which it seemed that the Arabs are making certain concessions to the Jews with regard to regional autonomy, national autonomy, and other things. When Dr. Magnes was asked whether he has any warrant for knowing that these stipulations represent the cenvictions or the opinions of the Arabs, and as to when those Arabs represent he said that among those Arabs are some of the Mufti party and other national Arabs in Palestine.

But when this matter was examined and looked inte, after a long train of correspondence it was discovered that the entire plan had nothing to do with Arabs, that it was purely a sort of fantastic draft gotten up by one Englishman, a certain Colonel Newcombe. The leader on the Jewish side was Mr. Hyemsor. Dr. Magnes was just a trap-door as he has been on a number of other occasions. He was told that this represented an Arab draft, whereas when it was finally brought down to a test, it turned out that the Arabs said the reverse of what was in this draft, that they had never consented to anything that savors of recognizing in any way the Jewish National Home, or the right of Jewish immigration. And our friend Dr. Magnes himself had to humiliatingly admit that since he had tried to draw in the Executive in these negotiations, that he had discovered that he was mistaken and that this did not represent any of the Arabs and their program.

Describing the various rumors of alleged peace agreements between Dr. Wiezmann and the Arabs, Mr. Fishman continued:

"From this you will see what the Executive had to contend with during these months that were so full of stress and terrible ordeals. I hope that this chapter ... this drive that is meant only just to draw us into something through which we will have to sacrifice eventually everything --- I hope that this has now been laid to rest.

"Taking stock of what has happened in Zionist circles during this time, we have discovered that there still exists a misunderstanding among Zionists as to what the Executive of the Jewish Agency is to fight for. Is it to fight for the Mandate? Or is it to fight for the best plan of a partitioned Jewish State _- for liberal proposals of a Jewish State? And, naturally, you can see that by what has happened among us here in the United States ---Hadassah has passed a resolution requesting the Executive to conduct its negotiations only on the basis of the Mandate, of a non-partitioned State. That the Executive will continue to press the enforcement of the Mandate pending the outcome of the negotiations on the partition scheme was made clear by Ben Gurion in his speech, as well as by Dr. Weizmann. Ben Gurion said something to this effect: That the Executive of the Jewish Agency as a body is neither for or against partition. Individually they may have different opinions. He himself would be for a Jewish State with frontiers that are better than the Peel Report, but as a body the Executive of the Jewish Agency is neither for nor against, but it has a mandate -- it has s resolution from the Zurich Congress -- which it considers as its direction, and the way the Executive understands this mandate from the Zurich Congress is that they have to defend the Mandate with sll the means at their command, so long as there is no Jewish State. But then Ben Gurion threw out this challenge to the members of the Actions Committee that still believe that the Executive should lay the entire stress on the Mandate: He told them that the Zurich resolution imposes upon the Executive a dual obligation. The Mandate itself has dual obligations, and so the Zurich resolution placed upon the Jewish Agency has dual obligations. But the way he understands it, and the way his colleagues on the Executive understand it, is that they are to fight for the Mandate until something else eventuetes. but that they consider their paramount duty to get a clear and concise plan from the British Government with regard to a Jewish State.

"We are not scrapping the Mandate. We are going to fight for the Mandate, but this is not the burden of the resolution of the Zurich Congress. At the Zurich Congress we decided finally that it was the duty of the Executive of the Jewish Agency to obtain the best possible terms for a Jewish State. We all knew that the Executive was not going to sit with folded arms and simply wait until this proposal comes to them from the British Government. That we would have to fight for such a plan, we made it very clear.

"It was very interesting to watch Mr. Ussishkin, who represents symbolically the opposition at the Congress. His action can be compared with the month of March in which we are meeting here -- "March comes in like a lion and goes out like a lamb". Something of the same nature took place in Mr. Ussishkin's psychology. His opening and main speech that he delivered was practically on the same lines as at the Congress, when again he stressed the possibility of declining to submit to the majority. I don't want to sey that he threatened, but he reiterated time and time egain that in such questions there can be no majority and no minority, and you can understand that the argument of his caused quite a great deal of surprise and counterstatements by other people. But when it came towards the and, as you already know, Mr. Ussishkin spoke in a different tone, and it is very characteristic and very important for us to know that this was in contrast to the speech that Mr. Ussishkin delivered at the farewell gathering to Dr. Weizmann in Palestine under the suspices of the Waad Leumi. At that meeting, he turned to Weizmann and said to him, "I am sorry, Dr. Weizmann, that I cannot give you my blessings upon your mission." And you know what Dr. Weizmann's answer was -- in his inimitable way he said, that so far as he is concerned, he wears blinders and sees only one purpose in front of him, and while he regretted very much that Mr. Ussishkin could not wish him luck, he will have to go on his way, because he believed that this is the only way. He said it much better than I could reconstruct it in my memory. Nevertheless at the close of the Actions Committee meeting, Mr. Ussishkin declared himself satisfied with Dr. Weizmann's statement, that unless certain conditions are fulfilled, he himself will not consider them, nor will he bring any such offer to the Congress. In other words, if the new proposal willnot be better than the Peel proposal, he will himself turn it down and he will not submit enything at all to a special Congress, and Mr. Ussishkin declared himself thoroughly satisfied with that statement, and said that he felt much easier now, and he does hope that Dr. Weizmann will get better terms,

"I may perhaps call your attention to the fact that at the meeting of the Administrative Committee held on our return from the Zurich Congress, I said the same thing, I said that Dr. Weizmann would not let us down, that he would not propose anything that is not better than the Peel report --and he has domonstrated this.

"Far more interesting was the reaction of the "rank and file" of the Actions Committee. For instance, Group B -- their leader Dr. Schwartzbard said very distinctly that he had seen the light. In wiew of what had happened, in view of this conspiratorial work, and in view also of what he has learned for himself in his part of Poland, he began to see the thing in a different light. The Mizrachi, furthermore, took a different attitude. We were reminded of what took place a day before the opening of the meeting of the Actions Committee, when we listened to the debete on Palestine in the British Parliament. There were some members of the Labor Party who were opposed to Partition, but at the same time clamored, "Why deesn't the Government procood with Partition; why does it drag along the decision; why does it not make an end of it?" So naturally at this time, Mr. Ormsby-Gore replied to them: "Why do you hurry us for partition when you are against it? You are either for or against it." But nevertheless this debate was very illuminating and enlightening, and we caw someof the things that make for various complications.

"In summing up the proceedings, I wish to state that there was a better understanding as to what is the duty of the Executive after the Zurich Congress. There was also a better understanding as to what is the duty of the Zionists, as Mr. Lipsky has told you. I think we have - both ya-zagers and nain-zagers - every reason to be satisfied with the political resolutions adopted. I think they represent the real will and expression of the organized Zionists. The resolutions are not partisan, and call for a minimum of loyalty from every Zionist. Our own President Dr. Wise deserves a great deal of credit. He has put in a great deal of work in helping to frame this resolution, and I think that this will now be valid - I would not say sacrosanct for every Zionist.

"Dr. Weizmann told us in one of his final speeches, that while the situation was very complicated and very uncertain a few weeks before, it has now been cleared up. Dr. Weizmann expressed the idea that what has happened in Austria would have a salutary effect upon Zionist fortunes. The more Great Britain is disillusioned and disappointed with the acts of certain dictators, the more things look better for our case.

"This is my personal impression. If anybody should ask me what I think are the chances of Partition, I would say that I do not entirely agree with Dr. Weizmann. Dr. Weizmann said in his last speech, that he is confident and hopeful that there will be a better proposal than the Peel report. I certainly hope and wish that it will be so, but as regards my own personal and private opinion, I don't think that Partition is as yet out of the woods, or a Jewish State is out of the woods. I have formed an opinion ---I cannot tall exactly on what basis, but it is my opinion, that the new Technical Commission will have no political jurisdiction. Everything will be decided in London. That is why the London front again becomes so important --- and the London front has been neglected, before Dr. Weizmann had gone back to London.

"I believe that the meeting of the Actions Committee, though not productive of any sensational material, had a very beneficial effect upon the shole Zionist Movement, and I am fully confident that the Zionists now will find the way to unity of action and to support the Executive of the Jewish Agency and Dr. Weizmann who is working as no man has worked before, and for this reason alone, I am convinced that the meeting of the Actions Committee was certainly worthwhile."

REPORT OF MR. ABRAHAM GOLDBERG:

"First, I want to say a word that nobody touched, the question of London. When we went to London it was understood that we go there in order to clarify, go naturally the talk went around: 'To London to clarify --the city of fogs!. But the weather that week turned out to be ideal. The place was properly chosen and equipped for a meeting of clarification. You hear now that we are going to have three fronts. In our politics we have two fronts -- Jerusalem and London. Then Dr. Weizmann went to Jerusalem and stayed there for months in expectation of the Commission's arrival. Since this Technical Commission will be appointed in the very noar future, Dr. Weizmann thought it his duty to be on the spot, in order to take up the negotiations with this Commission. The Commission did not come. In the meantime, the London front was neglected. As soon as Dr. Weizmann left London, hobody was there to take care of our London front which began to creak, as it was explained here, because a conspiracy was hatched, a real conspiracy in the mask of peace. They wanted us to give up the Mandate and the Balfour Declaration, before we take any stop. What we were to get was a Palestine State, but with two Arabs to every Jew. Naturally, it implies an Arab State. And the concossions given to us comprised, as you well know, a little bit of immigration. The bittor pill was sweetened by the proposed provision that the Jews may also migrate into other Arabic countries. In other words, they would give us a chance to scatter the Jews, to atomize the Jews even in Palostine. Many Zionists fall for that scheme. On the basis of that position, those men began to say: 'Good Zionists are in agreement with us!. Good Zionists means 'against partition'. Bad Zionists are those who want a Jewish State in a part of Palestine.

Referring to the Spur given to the above scheme by Sir Herbert Samuel, Norman Bentwitch, with the support of non-Zionists, Arab circles and even some Zionists, Mr. Goldberg said:

"Our political front in London was in the greatest danger, and therefore there was a hurry call for Weizmann and Ben Gurien, but especially for Weizmann.

And you heard what he had to go through, and that is what we were faced with in Lordon in order to show British officials and British public opinion that when Weizmann speaks he does not speak for himself, like Magnes and others. He had topoint out that the Lewish people as represented by the majority of Zionist are against such a scheme. As a matter of fact, when this scheme became known, the whole Actions Committee 5 id, "we will never accept it. We must draw a line of demarcation betwee gus and the assimilationists who are ready to sell our birthright for a mode of pottage" And that is why we had to reestablish our front in London. And the day after the Actions Committee meeting was over, Dr. Weizmann returned to Palestine again to maintain the Palestine front.

"The Congress resolution was subjected to many interpretations. Everybody saw in that resolution what they wanted. There were some who said that when Weizmann goes before the Mandatory Government and says."Give me better conditions." he is validating that resolution, because, in their opinion, the resolution gives him the only right to ascertain all the facts. But what shall Weizmann meantime try to do -- fight for the enforcement of the Mandate - and that question was the crux of the debate. (continuation of A. Goldberg's report)

On this point Dr. Weizmann made it very clear that it is impossible to carry on a mission which is contradictory. You cannot come to the Mandatory Power and say "maintain the Mandate -- not in a negative sense-don't violate the Mandate until we have a proposition for a Jewish Stateany violation of the Mandate before we have accepted the proposition of a Jewish State will be fought to the bitter end -- but in a positive sense -- we come before British officials and say, "keep the Mandate alive" -- and "what about the Jewish State", the Mandatory Power will say, "why are you bothering us about better conditions when you believe that the existing Mandate can do all these things?"

"You can well realize with what a situation Weizmann was faced. No Jewish State had been accepted.

Weizmann said: "I cannot carry on unless you give me men, money and discipline".

"Lipsky has told you about the Yishub. Despite the terrorism faced for two years they nevertheless made progress. They have made sacrifices and have contributed to the maintenance of the unemployed by giving out of their very mouths. They have contributed twelve days of their earnings, or 10%, in order to maintain that front.

"From the point of view of discipline, Veizmann found himself in an impossible position. Therefore the Actions Committee session had to be convened in London in order to knock this conspiracy on the head, and happily we came out united in that sense.

"Bentwitch stood up and said that he is for peace with the Arabs. But this would not be peace, it would be capitulation, and we would be placed in the position where the Arabs would merely allow us a limited Jewish immigration into Palestine.

"You read our President's call to the 29 nations. Palestine must have its proper place in that program. If we agree to the proposal of the Arabs, that only 10,000 or 20,000 Jews be permitted to come into Palestine, then we remain in obscurity and fall into the lowest depth of Jouish life. We must create an opportunity for Jews to come to Palestine and rebuild themselves. If we already had a Jewish State in Palestine, how different would our position be in connection with this call from the President. Everybody would support the Jewish State. Lot us not give up hopo. We must have peace with the Arabs, but first we must have our Jewish State. Then we will begin negotiations with the Arabs. Then we will have a real peace.

"As soon as we Zionists find out that we have something when we are united, and that something is, that we are never to sell our rights to anybody, for at that moment I knew that we are one organization. Therefore, the resolution that called for discipline also won unanimous support.

"Dr. Weizmann, in his final speech, which was full of significance as usual, reminded us of two things: One is 1914. Remember that in 1914 we faced a similar siutation. There is war in the air. But in 1914 what was the

(continuation of A. Goldberg's report)

thing we were fighting for? The Yishub in Eretz Israel was at that time around 100,000, out of which 60,000 were the so-called "chalukah" Jews, and then they began to leave as soon as they settled. Thus at the time when the Balfour Declaration was issued we had altogether 55,000 Jews in Palestins, out of which 25,000 were of the "chalukah" category.

"The we had America; we began to speculate; and we began to see a vision, and there came about a change in the attitude of the Jews here. That was when we won the Balfour Declaration and the Mandate. No matter what you say about the American Jews; we have our troubles, but we are four and a half million strong; and then we have 450,000 Jews in Palestine. This is our greatest accomplishment. People asked me why do I speak differently about Great Britain. My answer is 450,000 Jews in Palestine. That gives me my voice. Give me a million and I will talk even more differently. As the increase of the population, so grows my voice. It becomes thin whon the population stops; it gathers strength when the population grows.

"My conviction is that we have great friends in England. When I saw Ussishtin. on the one hand, and Weizmann on the other, with the former saying: 'I will do all in my power to help you, Dr. Weizmann' -- I went away and I said: 'Thank God.' Dr. Herzl gave us what you see today -- an organization. And as long as this organization lives, and as long as we will preserve it, I have no doubt that we will get the best provisions. I have no doubt that in the near future we will have an accomplishment that will be worthy of our movement and which will be a proud tribute to the founder of the movement, Dr. Theodor Herzl,"

In view of the lateness of the hour, the reports of the various departments of the Z.O.A. could not be presented at this meeting. The Chairman suggested, therefore, that these reports be submitted in writing to the members of the Administrative Committee.

Meeting adjourned at 2:00 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

-19-

ההסתדרות הציונית של ארצות הברית

Zionist Organization of America

The is to control and The North Amer Dissist District of Chinages M

-could - assessed Francis activities, and having segmed to simply solv all only and replacing generating -fileded - in, is landy recognized as an official France Song of the Francis Organization of Marines In Witness Whereast is law back afficial air signatures and sol of the Francis Organization of Marines

an or the April



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE OF THE ZOA

HELD WEDNESDAY EVENING, APRIL 27, 1938 - 8:30 P.M., 40 W. 68th St.

- <u>PRESENT</u>: Messrs. Lipsky (in the chair) Wise, Fierst, Goldberg, Levinthal, Margulies, Miller, Ress, Rothenberg, Sherman, Mrs. Epstein; Lawrence Cohen (representing Ayukah) Messrs. Caplan, Bernstein, Maltin, Golub (by invitation)
- Excuses for Absence from: Dr. Israel Goldstein, Dr. Israel, Joseph Kraamer, Wh. I. Siegel, Elihu D. Stone.

MEMORANDUM FROM DR. GOLDSTEIN :

Complete to

The Secretary reported the receipt of a communication, as per attached, from Dr. Israel Boldstein, giving his conclusions based on his experience as Acting President.

Decided that Dr. Goldstein's memorandum be incorporated in the minutes and referred to the Budget and Finance Committee.

WEDGWOOD MEETING AT TEMPLE EMANUEL :

Dr. Wise called attention to the fact that at the joint meeting arranged by Hadassah and the ZOA last Monday evening at Temple Emanu-El in honor of Col. Wedgwood, the Zionist flag was not displayed.

He therefore moved, and it was unanimously carried

THAT no Zionist meeting should be held in any hall where the right of unfurling the Zionist flag is denied.

SECRETARY'S REPORT :

Mr. Margulies observed that in March the membership was 1200 behind that of last year, but that during April there was an improvement. However the total membership as of May 1st will fall below that of last year, though there is an improvement over last year from the point of view of income. As of today the income from membership is \$61,736, as against \$54,770 last year - an increase of \$7,000.

Mr. Margulies pointed out that the falling off in the number of members is due primarly to the change in the dues. In addition, many of the leaders of the ZOA are prevented from giving more time to membership because of their activities in behalf of the UPA campaign. He was of the opinion, however, that by the Convention there will be an appreciable increase.

Mrs. Epstein suggested that the fiscal year of the ZOA should be from Convention to Convention.

- 2 -

REPORT OF SURVEY COLLITTEE :

for 1 10

Mr. Lipsky suggested that the Survey Committee report be submitted to the Convention Committee as a basis for recommendation to the Convention.

Mr. Ress stated that the Committee was subject to the instructions of the Executive.

It was then moved, seconded and carried

THAT the report of the Survey Committee should be ready for presentation to the next meeting of the Executive.

SAKIER - PALESTINE SECURITIES :

It was reported that a communication had been received from Mr. Abraham H. Sakier, informing the ZOA of the opening of an office by him for the sale of Palestine securities in this country.

Dr. Tise stated that it is a very serious matter that an individual should undertake the sale of Palestine securities, which the Organization contemplated doing in the fall when Dr. Ruppin will arrive here for this very purpose; moreover the name "Palestine Securities" belonged to the Zienist Organization.

Mr. Goldberg suggested that Mr. Sakier be suscened to the ZOA office and told that what he proposed was not the right thing to do and that we will not support him in his efforts.

It was finally moved, seconded and carried

THAT in view of the contemplated larg-scale organized effort for the sale of Palestine securities in this country in the fall, the Executive cannot approve of the scheme of Mr. Sakier.

Sakier.

It was suggested that Messrs. Sherman and Ross confer with Mr.

CLEVELAND ZIONIST SOCIETY MEMBERSHIP DUES :

The Secretary reported the receipt of a letter from Mr. Alfred H. Sachs, Treasurer of the Cleveland Zionist District, concerning the collection of membership dues by the Cleveland Zionist Society on a \$4 annual basis, whereas the District, under the constitution, was charging \$5.

Rabbi Miller declared that if the Society collects \$4 from its members it is committing a breach of the Convention resolution, the only exception being in the case of joint membership of husband and wife, at \$8, where only one copy of The New Falestine is sent, and which was approved by the Executive.

Dr. Wise suggested that in view of the proximity of the Convention, the matter be left for settlement to the Convention. It was then moved, seconded and carried

THAT the request of the Cleveland Zionist Society for \$4 dues be referred to the Committee on Organization.

- 3 -

CONVENTION PROBLEMS AND APPOINTEENT OF COLMITTEE ON CONVENTION PROGRAME :

The Secretary called attention to the necessity of naming a committee to consider the Convention program, and the matter of inviting someone from abroad.

It was moved, seconded and carried

THAT a Committee on Convention Program be appointed by the President.

MR. LIPSKY stated that an invitation had been extended to Dr. Teizmana to come here in June but in view of the presence of the Technical Commission in Palestine at this time, it is not cortain whether Dr. Dizmann will be able to leave that country.

It was suggested that Lady Rending might be invited. Another suggestion was to extend an invitation to Rabbi Hertz of England. Judge Rothenberg suggested Mr. Sidebotham, and Mr. Lipsky suggested also Gen. Smuts.

AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS :

It was proposed that the Executive vote formal ratification of the action of the President in inviting the ZOA members to secure the largest possible registration in the forthcoming Congress elections.

It was moved, seconded and carried

THAT Zionist Districts be notified of the coming Congress elections and asked to cooperate and take a leading part in this activity; also that the action of the President be approved. In addition the President of Hadassah be asked to confer with the President of the ZOA in the hope that Hadassah may do its full duty in this matter.

Mr. Goldberg urged that the Executive be regularly informed of the Congress actimities and duly consulted.

Meeting adjourned 10:30 P.M.

Respectfully submitted

MORRIS MARGULIES Secrotary April 16, 1938

EXECUTIVE OF THE ZOA

From Dr. Israel Goldstoin

Report to Dr. Wise.

Having served, at your request, as the Acting President of the ZOA during your absence in London, may I make this brief report for your own information and for the record touching the ZOA during these few weeks.

Two meetings of the Executive were held during this time. The minutes of those meetings will convey the business transacted.

You will notice that an offort was made to familiarize the members of the Executive with the details of the business of the ZOA. Specific reports of the various departments of the ZOA were called for, presented and discussed. These presentations and discussions had the effect, I believe, of apprising the members of the Executive, who were present, concerning facts, figures, and relationships. As a result of this specific and concrete information, the Executive will, I trust, be in a better position to evaluate the recommendations of the Europe Committee.

With reference to the Purvey Committee, whose deliberations you instructed me to push forward, Mr. Ress, the Chairman, will report. Permit me, however, to state that the Purvey Committee, enclarged by the addition of a few more members of the Executive, when you appointed, has made tangible progress. For the consideration of the Purvey Committee, I presented a somewhat different approach to the whole problem, which received favorable consideration and which may help us to envisage the business of the ZOA in a more specific way both as regards the departments themselves and their relative importance to the other departments.

May I give my own conclusions regarding the budgetary question which has been the subject of considerable debate. I am satisfied -

1. That expenses of the ZOA, at the present time, are not running at a rate exceeding its current income.

2. That for the next year, beginning June 1, or beginning September 1st, whichever period is desired as a basis, the income for the ZOA (available for operating expenses after the amount of \$10,000 will have been deducted for the payment on the deficit) will be \$125,000, which will represent approximately \$15,000 less than the available income for the current year. It will therefore be necessary to find a way of saving \$15,000 in our expense budget. The alternative will have to be the finding of a way to guarantee \$15,000 additional income. May I express my appreciation to our Sec stary, Mr. Margulies, for his unfailing attentiveness to my requests for information, services, etc. I took the liberty of asking Mr. Margulies to let me have a day-to-day diary of his appointments, as well as correspondence, so that I derived an intimate picture of how the ZOA works.

I suggested to Mr. Margulies that he give us his plan for the functioning of the organization of the Hembership Department for the ZOA, both in the national office and the regional offices, indicatingthe budget as well as the program. It may serve auseful purpose for us to know how this department which is the most important of our departments should function if we had the money necessary for it.

In conclusion, may I supplement this report by observing that while being in Chicago where I went for the ZOA, I had occasion to sound out some of the local leaders with reference to the discussions we have been having in the Executive recently in connection with the report of the Survey Cormittee. I believe in order to have a clear picture of the situation, it behaves us to get the reaction of the regional leaders throughout the country. After all it is they who have the closest contact with the people when we are trying to serve.

My impression of Chicago is that there is considerable activity under the leadership of illian Katz. He is endeavoring to centralize the work and to cultivate the separate localities in Chicago intensively. My visit there was utilized for a small luncheon of the city-wide leaders and in the evening for a large meeting in the northwest section of Chicago where the district has been revitalized and now has one hundred members. Fifty new members came in the evening I was there with an attendance of six hundred. If that is a criterion for what is being done in other sections of the city it is gratifying.

Mr. Katz was generous in his comments regarding the cooperation given by Mr. Margulies.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE Z.O.A. ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE

HELD SUNDAY, MAY 29th, 1:30 F.M., at the HOTEL ASTOR, N.Y.C.

PRESENT: Judge Morris Rothenberg (in the Chair) Messrs. Isaac Allen, Samuel Berman, Samuel Berson, A. D. Braham, Adolph Brinberg, Sol Cohon, Charles A. Cowen, Jacob Fishman, Abraham Goldberg, Fabbi Israel Goldstein, Morris Greenberg, Leo Guzik, Isidore A. Hassin, Arnold K. Isreeli, Samuel Judenfreund, Harry J. Kahn, Abraham Krumbein, Dr. Harris J. Lewine, Meyer Levy, Louis Lipsey, Dr. S. Margoshes, Morris Margulies, Rabbi Irving Miller, Rabbi A. H. Neulander, Dr. Harry Projector, Charles Ress, Bernard G. Richards, Louis Rimsky, Meses Rubinson, Joehanon I. Rudavsky, Bernard Shelvin, Abraham Spicehandler, Joshua Sprayragon, Judge Nathan Sweedler, Robert Szeld, Merris Weinberg, Lee Wilson, Dr. Stephen S. Wise, Lee Wolfson; Dr. Frances Burnce, Derehester, Mass.; Dr. David Foldman, Philadelphia, Pa; Jacob Ginsburg, Philadelphia, Pa; Rabbi Abram Granowitz, Johnstown, Pa.; Rabbi Wm. Greenfield, Waterbury, Conn.; Harold G. Jaffer, Mr. Vornon, N.Y.; Joseph Kraemer, Judge Leuis E. Levinthal, Judge William E. Lewis; Morris Malleve, New London, Conn.; Harry Rosenbaum, Plainfield, N.J.; Hen. Elihu D. Ston, Boston, Mass.; by invitation: Judge Bernard A. Resenblatt (of Palestine) David Heimann(of Germany) J. Istorie (of Lendon).

Excusos for non-Attendanco - wore received from Israel S. Chipkin, Harry P. Fierst, Rabbi J. L. Goldberg, Samuel Kanarvogel, Rabbi I. H. Levinthal, Louis J. Moss, Carl Sherman; Dr. Ilio Berger, Providence, R.I.; Rabbi M. M. Berman, Chicage, Ill; Col. Benjamin F. Evarts, Helyeke, Mass.; Rabbi Benjamin Friedman, Syracuse, N.Y.; Rabbi Solemen Goldman, Chicagel, Ill.; Isidere Hershfield, Washington, D.C.; Jacob B. Hoffman, Philadelphia, Pa.; B. Hervich, Chicage, Ill.; Rabbi Edward Israel, Baltimere, Md.; Prof. Gustave Klausner, St. Leuis, Me; Samuel Kranzberg, St. Leuis, Me; Dr. M. B. Lichtenstein, Pittsburgh, Pa.; Mortimer May, Nashville, Tenn.; Max Nigresh, Mattapan, Mass.; Joseph Reder, Mattapan, Mass.; Aaron Riche, Les Angeles, Calif.; Dr. M. Robbins, Nushua, N.H.; Louis Resenberg, Housten, Toxas; Sam Shankman, Memphis, Tenn.; Simon Shetzer, Detroit, Mich.; Jee Weingarten, Heusten, Texas; Rabbi E. Z. Zwelling, New Britain, Conn.; Rabbi Colman Zwetman, Miami, Fla.

TRIBUTE TO THE LATE ELIAS PREISS :

Bofcro prococding with the business of the meeting, the Chairman made the following statement:

"On May 28, 1938 there departed from this life Elias Preiss, a member of the Administrative Committee of the 204, a member of the Beard of Directors of the UPA and the JNF, and of the Finance Committee of the 204. He labored with utmost devotion and carnestness as a member of these bedies, and achieved much in the cenerete task of our Zienist mevement. He worked gietly and effectively, giving generously of his time, his thoughts, his energy and of his substance. He was of the best that the ZOA produced. There should be inseribed in the minutes of this moeting a record of our profound grief at the death of Elias Preiss and of our tribute to his life and deeds. Let us rise in tribute to his memory."

The members present then rose in silent tribute to Mr. Preiss.

- 2 -

TRIBUTE TO DR. LAZARUS KARP :

The Chairman also recorded the deep serrow of the Administrative Committee at the death of Dr. Lazarus Karp of Richmend, Va., an ardent Zionist who worked with great energy and devotion for every branch of our movement for a great many years and who did much to stimulate and develop Zionist sentiment in that part of the country.

Mr. Los Wolfson moved that aresolution of condelence be sent to the family of Mr. Proiss and to the members of the 7th District.

Mr. Lipsky referred to the editorial in the May 27th issue of The New Palestine, which, he said, suggested the gality of the services rendered by Dr. Marp to the movement in the South. Dr. Marp came from the old city of Richmond, with its traditions of opposition to Zionist ideals. He came there as an dien, but he forced consideration of the Zionist ideals. He community with tact and with forcefulness, and at the end we have to his credit a strong Zionist community in that city.

The Chairman meved that an appropriate resolution adopted by the Administrative Committee be forwarded to the family of Dr. Karp and to the family of Mr. Proiss. This was seconded and carried unanimously.

WELCOME TO JUDGE BERNARD A. ROSENBLATT :

The Chairman welcomed Judge Resemblatt, now in the United States on a brief visit.

WELCOME TO MR. DAVID HEIMANN :

The Chairman also welcomed Mr. David Heimann, Hererary President of the Zionist Organization of Germany and Senier President of the Jewish Community of Berlin.

AGENDA * DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS :

The Chairman called attention to the fact that the heads of the departments of the ZOM have been unable for some time to present their reports. He folt that now, before the Convention, these reports should be presented.

The Chair then called upon Mr. Margulies to present his report as Secretary of the ZOA:

SECRETARY'S REPORT :

Mr. Margulies reported that since the last meeting of the Administrative Committee on March 27th, the Executive hold three meetings. The first took place on March 29th upon the return of the President from London where he attended the meeting of the Actions Committee. Dr. Wise took the occasion to thank Dr. Goldstein for the very efficient manner in which he had discharged the duties of Acting President. The resolution on the political situation, adopted by the Actions Committee was read to members of the Executive. Attention was called to the remarks of Mr. Bon Gurien in which connection statements were made both by Mr. Lipsky and Dr. Wise.

The mooting then proceeded to a discussion of Secretary Hull's proposal for an international conference in behalf of German and Austrian refugees, in connection with which a communication was read from Dr. Silver. Mr. Lipsky observed that the resolution adopted at the special mooting on Sunday, March 27th following the last mooting of the Administrative Committee, represented a very accurate reaction to what is proposed by Secretary Hull, and covers also what is referred to by Dr. Silver, namely, that it should be the intention of the Zienist Organization to see to it that in the conference to be called, Palestine should be introduced in a way to put England under the moral compulsion of opening the doors of Palestine to help selve the Jowish problem. After considerable discussion, it was deeided that Dr. Wise and Mr. Lipsky proceed to Washington in order to confer with Secretary Hull andother members of the Cabinet, with a view to getting them to understand the importance of having England revise the Palestine immigration schedule, in connection with President Receivelt's call for a conference on the refugee problem.

In this connection Dr. Wise referred also to a memorandum from Judge Rothenborg, urging that the Executive give thought to this entire problem both from the point of view of settlement work new going on in Palestine and the larger place which Palestine must occupyin any program of refugee settlement to be undertaken.

The Executive then discussed the Nifde Hazieni dise referred to in Dr. Silver's letter. Mr. Lipsky explained that at the mosting of the Actions Committee in Lenden a report was rendered of what had been done in Palestine by all elements of the population in the way of assessments voluntarily undertaken in order to help the unemployment situation. As a result, the Yishub has contributed ever \$200,000 to the unemployment fund, ever and above the regular contributions with which every one is assessed for the Koren Hayesed and Koren Kayeneth. It was made clear that it was not intended to make any collections from any one whe is not an enrolled Zienist, and that the collection is not be be made through a national campaign but locally through each Zienist District. After listening to various proposals as to the method of raising this Nifde Hazieni, it was decided that a committee of three be named to propare a plan for the carrying out of the program with regard to the Mifde Hazieni.

This meeting also decided to invest the sum of \$5,000 in the proparations for the Falestine Exhibit at the World's Fair, with the understanding that every effort be made by the Executive to make good this contribution at the next Convention.

At that mooting of the Executive also Mr. Lipsky called attention to a resolution adopted at the last Convention urging the ZOA to establish in the United States a Palestine land selling agency and that nothing has been done by the Executive thus far with regard to this resolution. Mr. Lipsky stated further that the affairs of the American Zion Commonwealth had been gradually liquidated and all the obligations in the United States had been discharged, and now that all disputes with regard to the Commonwealth had been settled, whatever is to be done in the United States with regard to land sales, should be done under the name of the American Zion Commonwealth as the agency of the ZOA, inasmuch as the ZOA had proviously been the sufferer in credit and repute because of the complicated affairs of the Commonwealth. In this connection, Mr. Lipsky called attention to the fact that Mr. David Freiberger has given his time gratis for nine years to straightening out the affairs of the Commonwealth, and he suggested that Mr. Freiberger be authorized on behalf of the Executive to get in touch with the P.L.D.C. for the purpose of proparing a plan for land selling under the direction of the ZOA. Attention was called also to the fact that Mr. Merris Weinberg was very helpful in saving the Commonwealth by advancing the funds regired by Carnelia. Messrs. Freiberger, Lipsky and Weinberg were appointed a committee to make a further report on this matter.

The next mosting of the Executive was hold on April 27th to which was submitted a communication from Dr. Goldstein giving his conclusion based on his experience as Acting President. It was decided to refer these proposals to the Budget and Finance Conmittee.

Attontion was called to a communication from Mr. Abraham Sakier, informing the ZDA of the opening of an office by him for the sale of Palestine securities in this country. Dr. Wise observed that it is a very serious matter that an individual should undertake the sale of Palestine securities which the Organization contemplated doing in the fall when Dr. Ruppin will arrive here for this very purpose. The Executive decided that it could not approve of the scheme of Mr. Sakier.

The mosting then discussed the action of the Cloveland Zionist Society in collecting membership dues on a \$4 annual basis, whereas the District under the constitution was charging \$5. In the discussion which followed, Rabbi Miller declared that if the Society collects \$4 from its members it is committing a breach of the Convention resolution. Dr. Wise suggested that in view of the proximity of the Convention, the matter be left for settlement to the Convention.

The mosting decided to appoint a Committee on Convention Program which should give its attention also to the matter of inviting someone from abroad to attend the Convention. In this connection it was pointed out that an invitation had been extended to Dr. Weizmann, but in view of the presence of the Technical Commission in Palestine at this time, it is not certain whether Dr. Weizmann would be able to leave that country.

Anothor matter discussed at that mooting was the formal ratification of the action of the President in inviting the ZOA members to secure the largest possible registration in the fortheoning American Jowish Congress elections, and it was decided that Zienist Districts be notified of the coming Congress elections and asked to take a leading part in this activity; also that the action of the President be approved. Mr. Goldborg urged that the Executive be regularly informed of the Congress activities.

The last meeting of the Executive held on May 11th was devoted ontirely to a discussion of the report of the Survey Committee which had been enlarged and included Mr. Ress (chairman) Chipkin, Dr. Goldstein, Lipsky, Recker, Siegel, Szold and Thau. The first two meetings of the Survey Committee, Mr. Ress reported, were devoted very largely to an effort to ascertain the budgetary facts, and the Committee came to the following corclusions:

1. That the Palostino Burcau as now operated be eliminated, and that

Dr. Bornstein be requised to devote part time only to furnishing information concorning the matters formerly handled by the Palestine Bureau. The Committee recommended that despite the lack of success in the past, further effort be made to arrange for the setting up of a Bureau to be maintained at the expense of all American Zionist groups, the ZOA to pay its pre-rate share of the cost.

2. That the publication of Dos Yiddisho Folk bo discontinued.

3. That there be allotted to the Education Committee for its activities during the coming year a sum not exceeding \$3500. The Survey Committee was advised that the Committee on Education had under consideration a plan for educational activity coordinated more offectively them heretofore with the work of Young Judaca, Masada and Avakah, and that these organisations, in consideration of the additional service to be given them by the Educational Director, might permit a pertion of their respective subsidies to be allocated to educational work.

4. That the arrangement with "r. van Paassen be revised so that in lieu of a fixed annual compensation he be paid for each address he may deliver for the ZOA.

5. The Committee considered also the possibility of further savings in the administration of the office, particularly in view of the proposals for the curtailment of certain activities.

6. In order to offect closer coordination in the office, the Committee suggested the appointment of a Standing Committee consisting of the Chairman of the Finance Committee, the Treasurer and a member of the Executive.

After a protracted discussion the Executive decided as follows:

1. That the matter of the Palestine Department be brought to the attention of the Convention with a plan propared by the Finance Committee, with a view to securing enlarged interest in the establishment of a truly functioning Palestine Bureau.

2. That a special committee be appointed to find ways and means of securing funds for "Dos Yiddishe Folk".

3. That the recommendation of the Survey Committee with regard to the Education Department be tabled, but that before the Convention, the Executive should most with the Youth and Education Committees and submit to the Convention their decision regarding the proposal for a special campaign for a youth and education fund to cover the work of these departments, in order to raise the sum needed for these activities, to balance the budget.

A special mooting of the Executive was to be hold the following wook for the purpose of discussing the budget of the 20A, to be submitted to the Convention, and the apstion of raising the 340,000 or more moded for the work of the Organization for the coming year.

DISCUSSION ON SECRETARY'S REPORT:

The Chairman called for comments on the above report, and thought perhaps that this might be an appropriate time to decide the matter of the Convention City -- whether or not Detroit is approved.

It was pointed out by Mr. Margulies that in view of the fact that

the Convention last year was held in New York City, and next year's Convention will also have to be held in New York because of the World's Fair of which the Palestine Exhibit will be the most important attraction for Zionists, if it were decided to have the Convention in the vicinity of New York this year, it would mean three consecutive years for a New York Convention. Mercover the conventions since 1933 have been held close to New York. For all these reasons the Executive decided that the Convention be held in the MiddleWest. Three cities were proposed -- Buffale, Pittsburgh and Detroit, and it was folt that Detroit offered the best possibilities, and consequently Detroit was finally chosen by the Exceutive.

Mr. Spicohandlor moved, and it was seconded and carried unanimously

THAT Dotroit bo approved as the Convention City for this year.

CONVENTION PROGRAM COLMITTEE :

Mr. Spicohandlor urged that five additional members be appointed on the Convention Progra Committee.

Mr. Margulios reported that the present membership of the Committee consists of Messrs. Shorman, Miller, Ress, Abraham Goldborg and Segel.

It was moved, seconded and carried

THAT five additional members, who are not mombers of the Executive, be appointed on the Convention Program Committee.

Mr. Sol Cohan proposed that a committee should be appointed to outline definitely the functions and purposes of the Administrative Committee.

In response, Judge Rothenborg pointed out that the Convention Committee is the Program Committee, and that therefore this matter should be reforred to the Convention itself.

Mr. Stone declared that this Administrative Committee is the supreme body between conventions.

CONSTITUTION :

Mr. Guzik inquired whether there will be constitutional matters to be considered.

Mr. Margulios roplied that the Committee on Constitution will submit new proposals for the Constitution to this Convention, in order that a revised Constitution may be adopted, and that, as a matter of fact, included in these proposals is an outline of the scope and purpose of the Administrative Committee.

After a lengthy discussion in which Messrs. Guzik, Margulies, Spicehandler, Wolfson, Rabbis Neulander, Wise, and Judge Lowis participated, it was finally moved, seconded and carried THAT copies of the constitutional proposals be sent to the numbers of the Administrative Committee, the delegates to the Convention, and the District Chairmen, two weeks before the Convention; and that subsequently the matter be presented to the Convention by the Constitution Committee, at a special session of the Convention.

ACTION ON SURVEY COMMITTEE REPORT :

Mr. Hassin suggosted that the Secretary re-read the action taken by the Executive on the matter of the Education Department. The Secretary did so.

Er. Sholvin wanted further clarification on the matter of Dos Yiddishe Folk. He folt that the Executive's recommendation to the Convention meant the discontinuance of that publication.

The Chairman explained that the recommendation of the Executive means that no action was taken on Dds Yiddishe Folk, except that the Convention is to consider ways and means for continuing the publication of Des Yiddishe Folk; that the status que remains up until the Convention and that publication continues until that time.

Dr. Israel Goldstein who presided at the meeting of the Executive which made recommendations with reference to the Survey Committee's report, clarified the intent of the record presented by the Executive. One of the recommendations made by the Survey Committee was that Des Yiddishe Folk be discontinued. That proposal was not accepted. This action parallels the action on the Education Department, which is phrased in more or less the same language. The reason why no similar resolution appears with reference to The New Palestine is that the Survey Committee made no similar meanmondation with regard to The New Palestine as it made with regard to the other departments. Therefore there was no call for such action.

Mr. Elihu D. Stone movod

THAT The New Palestine be included in the recommendations of the Executive.

Mr. Stono said that he saw no justification for any discriminations. The good for funds should be unde for both publications.

Mr. Stono's motion was seconded.

Mr. Cowon supplemented Dr. Goldstein's remarks. He said that the Finance Committee had indicated at the meeting of the Executive that there would be a deficit of \$20,000 during the coming year, assuming that these activities were eliminated. A healthy organization domands that all of these activities be continued. The Executive folt that inasmuch as there would be a deficit, the whole problem of meeting the budget should be referred to the Convention and to the incoming administration to be elected by the Convention. Under these circumstances, there is no recommendation for the discontinuance of any of the important work of the important work of the organization should be discontinued. We will have the problem of meeting the budget next year either by securing funds from the UPA or otherwise.

Mr. Charlos Ross, Chairman of the Survey Committee appointed by Dr. Mise, expressed the boliof that very fow members of the ZOA are fully acquainted with the financial situation of the Organization. He fet that the recommendations of the Survey Committee cldarly indicate that the Finance Committee's report shows that this your the ZOA escaped a serious deficit because of the fact that we recoived from the UPA not this year, but on account of the 1936 campaign, monies coming in this year to the amount of \$45,000, which represented non-recurring income. The Finance Committee also reported, he said, that for next year the ZOA faces the situation that unless it makes some changes, the 20A will start the year with a deficit of approximately \$50,000. Our whole not dues amount, from the most optimistic point of view, to \$76,000 and although the UPA will grant us \$54,000, we will have a deficit of almost \$50,000 at the end of the year. The Survey Committee, therefore, made its recommendations socking to curtail activitios which it disliked to soo curtailed, but which it believed have to be reduced if the ontire ZOA activity is not to be erippled during the coming year. When the nonbors of our Executive and Administrative Committee tell us that we must must continue this or that activity, it behooves them simultaneously to bring be-. fore this body, or proferably to the Convention, ways and means of raising the funds which will be regired, otherwise the ZOA will not function preperly, Mr. Ross concluded.

In roply to Mr. Stono's inquiry as to how much is spont on The New Palestine, the Chairman stated that we are not new discussing the subject of finances. Since the Survey Committee's recommendations were not adopted, he pointed out, we should make no recommendations here on the finances of Des Yiddishe Felk or The New Palestine, and the whole matter should be referred to the Convention.

REPORT ON PALESTINE DEPARTMENT :

Dr. Bornstoin reported that the tasks of the Palestine Department were two-fold: (1) to help American Jows who want to go to Pelestine as capitalists or tourists, by securing proper visas, etc., for them; and (2) to assist American Jows in bringing over their relatives from Poland, Germany, Austria, etc., to Palestine. He pointed out that in 1935, 3,000 American Jows wont to Palestine as capitalists, but the disorders of 1936 adversely affected such immigration so that in 1957 only 82 capitalists sailed for Palestine. He estimated that this year the Palestine Dept. would serve about 1500 American tourists going to Palestine, and that since such tourists must deposit \$300 with the British Consul, unless they have a letter from the 20A guarantying that they are been fide tourists, a considerable amount of work is involved for the Department.

Dr. Bernstein pointed out also that during 1937 he had to handle the cases of 176 returning Palestine reisdents about which the Palestine Government is very strict, and which entails a great deal of work by the Department, making it impossible to continue this single-handed any longer.

He reported further that in 1937 the Department assisted in the transforring of 11D families, or 222 individuals from Germany and Poland to Palestine, for whem American Jows deposited large sums of money. A much larger number could be transforred, but the applications are used up. In this connection Dr. Bernstein pointed to the difficulties inherent in the Austrian problem. At the present time the Department has 150 applications on file on behalf of relatives of American Jows, and as a matter of fact, on a single day, 3,000 persons registered their desire to emigrate to Palestine against 1,000 immigrants for other countries. It is interesting to note, he added, that of the 150 relatives of Americans, the young mon of these families desire to go to Palestine, whereas the parents will be brought to America.

In addition, the Department will have to look after the 2500 applications of American Jows whose departure to Palestine must be expedited this year, many of whom, it is heped, will be included in the October capitalist allotment.

Dr. Bornstoin called attention to the fact also that the British Consul in New York new has the authority to issue Falestine visas instead of having such visas come from Falestine, as was the case for a time.

Dr. Goldstoin observed that according to Dr. Bernstoin's report there are a great many capitalists waiting for permission to go to Palestine, whereas in the report of the Jowish Agency it is indicated that several capitalist cortificates had remained unused.

Dr. Bernstein explained that some American capitalists could not utilize their cortificates since they could not get visas for their families, while some were waiting for improved conditions but there are no unused capitalist corfificates on hand in America.

Dr. Bornstoin urged that the Organization stimulate tourist activity so that the number should equal former propertients. He added also that by November, 1938, 500 Austrian visas will be granted, which will take care of 300 American applications, and that by March, 1939, about 500 Vienness (including all categories) may be able to be transforred to Falestine through their American relatives.

STATELENT BY MR. DAVID HEIMANN :

The Chairman called upon Mr. David Heimann who spoke in German on the Jowish situation abread, and expressed his appreciation of the cooperation of American Ziorists.

REMARKS OF ME. ISTORIC

Dr. Wise was asked by the Chairman to introduce Mr. Istoric of London. He referred to Mr. Istoric's achievements in the Cowish Colonid Trust and in the Angle-Palestine Bank, and his services in connection with the financial activities of the World Zionist Organization.

Mr. Istoric spoke briefly as follows:

"No miraclos have been done. We took every possible advantage of the period of prosperity in Falestine; and if I can claim something, it is that I have not missed any opportunities.

"It is only natural that a nm who is in the world of Palestine finance should be asked what is the position in the world of finance today and what we can expect in the near future. The balance in our Bank which we have just published shows that the situation is not as bad as it looks from far away. Our fundamental institutions are doing quite well. If you will have an opportunity to read the report of the General Mortgage Bank of Falestine, from which you will see the enormous turnever in loans that these banks grant to clients, then you will have a correct impression of how things are going on. Political uncertainty, however, has caused a great deal of trouble, to the extent that private initiative has been stifled.

We in London sot ourselves to a very difficult task five years age, a task in which I had claimed pride in having succeeded in the highest possible measure, and that is, to prove to the non-Jewish world that Palestine is ripe for investment. You know how London is being looked up to as the financial contor of the world. We had to reconstruct the method of conducting business in our leading institutions. That means the reconstruction of the Jewish Colonial Trust, the Angle-Palestine Bank, the Keren Hayesed, and we brought them up to such a state that the non-Jew has found them to be good, sound security for the menoy invested in Palestine. You can compare the Keren Hayesed leans in 1934 and the recent one, and you cannot possibly regard these leans as anything but an expression of hope and confidence which the non-Jew has in Falestine. The leading financiers de not look upen Palestine as badly as do the Jews themselves.

"Two wooks ago I had a vory great satisfaction to carry a mossage to Palestine. Before leaving London 1 was busily engaged in finding maney for ending unemployment in Palestine. There are different ways and means to be considered. There are municipal public works to be carried out in Tel Aviv and Enifa. We had succeeded in arranging a lean of L 350,000 for twenty years for the Hunicipality of Haifa, for security, for water, etc. We teld the Palestine Government that the Angle-Palestine Bank would not fix the percentage of Jewish labor. In Haifa we have an assurance that the menoy will provide for quite a considerable time for half Jowish and half-Arab labor.

"I think that this is the best evidence how a least like this is being placed among the biggest possible companies. The Jewish banker has been an entry onist to every proposition that comes from Palestine. This is true of private people as well. We succeeded, however, in getting the confisionse of non-Jewish elements, and I think this is of great importance. This last long is a source of satisfaction as to how the future looks. There is nothing wrong with Palestine itself. It is a good, payable, commercial proposition. I think what I have just told you is good emidence that we can look with hope and confidence at the future of Falestine. Den't lose hope.

"So much for business and finance. I want to toll yes just another word that is really outside of my work. You have heard about Hasting. "So passed off the main read to Haifa and the very remote northern frontier to Syria, with Hartzfeld and all our young men who carry on the guard duty, and I took part in a demonstration meeting. These 92 young beys who were picked from all the old colonies are the people in Hanita. Then you look around from Hanita, you see what a dangerous spot is being occupied, all of primary importance from a strategic point of view. If anyone gees there it is simply to have a look and to get a proper impression of the spirit that provails in the country. The spirit of Hanita is the spirit of people who say: We are here and we are going to stay here, no matter what will happen. Out of the 92 persons, 42 are engaged in work in the fields, while as many as 50 are engaged in guard duty, day and night. These piencers do the simple work which falls upon them, with great hener. "Everybody knows what is the real meaning of Hanita. Hartzfold asked me to talk about Hanita wherever I go. I must tell you of the great spirit of hope and confidence which provails there.

REPORT ON EDUCATION DEFARTMENT :

In connection with the report on the Education Department, the Chairman observed that Dr. Golub was not present, but that he has been submitting reports regularly to the Executive.

REPORT ON UNITED PALESTINE APPEAL :

Judge Acthonborg asked Mr. Lipsky to report on the United Palestine Appeal.

Mr. Lipsky stated the he would report informally, since he did not have the actual figures before him. He pointed out that the impression was that conditions in the United States warranted this year a decrease in the income of the UPA, nevertheless the UPA, together with the JDC, both in Welfare Funds and independent campaigns, have gotten much more favorable returns than last year. New York, for instance, will produce about \$150,000 more this year, and the same is true in all large communities, and all along the line despite economic conditions.

Dr. Goldstein supplemented the above report by stating that as of May 15th the income of the UPA for 1936 in each and pledges is semawhat in excess of \$1,000,000, an increase over the same period last year. It must be borne in mind, however, that this year Chicage and Baltimere, two of the largest producers in the UPA, may not conduct campaigns. Therefore, it is hoped that the increase in other communities throughout the country will make up for these two emissions. If this be the case, we can regard the UPA intrinsically more successful this year, which is a remarkable record in view of business conditions.

Dr. Goldstein called attention to the fact also that in a number of communities the overseas campaigns -- the UPA or the JDC -- are being used by the local committees to premote the raising of funds for their local activities, whereas, in the allocations, the overseas budget receives a shameful fraction of the total. He sited the example of one community, where out of a total budget of \$35,000, the sum of \$2,400 was allocated for Falestine, \$3,000 for the JDC, and \$700 for various European Yeshivet, indicating a lack of understanding and responsibility. Dr. Goldstein urged insistence on propertionate allocations, and that all members of the Administrative Committee should make themselves responsible for propertionate allocation in their respective communities.

Dr. Goldstein pointed out also that in some communities complaints are heard on the part of the heads of the Welfare Funds that Zionists are not sufficiently active as denors and solicitors in local Welfare Fund campaigns. While he folt that this indictment was not justified, he urged that the Zionists make their participation folt, especially in order that they may insist upon the UPA receiving its proper share of the total, and also reflect credit on the Zionist attitude toward Jowish life in this country. Judge Rothenberg agreed with Dr. Goldstein about the inadequacy of the amount for overseas work in some of the smaller communities, but that this was not the case in most of the larger cities, where the proportion is at least 50% and in some cases 75%.

AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS :

With regard to the American Jewish Congress, Mr. Lipsky made the following statement:

"If the purpose of this report is to introduce a discussion which will load to some action, it would be in order. As a matter of fact, overything dono by the American Jowish Congress has been a matter of public knowledge. The American Jewish Congress is now engaged in an action which all of us who are in the Congress regard as fundamental not only to the movement of the Gelus called Amorican Jowish Congress, but important and significant for the entire Zionist movement. We are facing this year of 1933 the culmination of a struggle for the organization of Jowish life in America which started over 35 years ago. In every strugglo that took place, the Zionists wore found on one side, and on the other side, all the non-Zionists, anti-Zionists and anti-nationalists. This struggle here this year has in it something which should provoke a climax. In 1914 we expected that at the end of the war there would be an opportunity for the Jowish people to register ideologic considerations in the domands to be made at the poace conformeo. At the present time what is facing the Jows of this country and the world is a breakdown of the Golus front of the Jows, which affects the position vitally. So far as Zionists are concorned, Poland has dropped out of the scone. Roumania, Gormany, Austria are dropping out of the scone so far as support of the Palostino front is concorned. Attacks are now being made in many European lands against the Jewish people, in various forms in different parts of the world, and which are bound eventually to reach the front which we are defending with so much horoism and sacrifico in Palostino. And to imagine that in such a situation the Jowish people of America and other lands can be unorganized in their defense is an astoundingly unacceptable position for Zionists who should be the first to ropudiato and rojoct this.

"We have been talking about some of the attacks which have been made - one of which was made in The New York Times by Dr. Goldenson. He represents in these remarks the classic conception of opposition to the Zionist movement which reaches cown into the Congress movement and represents everything we have been fighting for since the beginning of the Congress mevement. Must the Jows of America be dictated to by this small remnant which stands for that point of view, in the face of the vital and immediate issues affecting Jowish life?

"The American Jowish Congress is a very inndequate body, but it does represent the embediment of these ideas which have to do with the Golus pesition of the Jows, instead of having the dominant view with regard to the state of the Jowish people spoken not by the Jews themselves but by organized private concerns who uniertake in their private capacity the defense of Jewish rights. We have in the United States organizations who regard defense of public interests as belonging to anybody who wants to pick it up.

"The American Jowish Congress has been forced into this position by the development of Jewish life. Anybody who was in London at the time of the Actions Committee meeting when Hitler moved into Austria, will agroe that we are facing one of the most audacious attacks upon a people, and all over the world Jewsthemselves are disorganized and disunited with regard to the whole matter. And the American Jowish Congress undertook in proper American way to go through with democratic elections and submit this fundamental question as to whether Jewish rights shall be defended by private or public organizations -- organizations which have public responsibilities, or these who recognize no public responsibilities.

"This novement by the Congress has evoked a most amazing response on the part of the public. There never has been a matter of Jowish interest conducted with so much enthusiasm and ferver and personal vital concern as is new being displayed in connection with the Congress -- not since the days of the Kishinev pogrems. The thousands upon thousands of Jows who are registering themselves, is an indication of how deeply Jows are stirred by the feeling that in this great world where there is no justice -- no parliament no tribunal where the rights of the Jowish people can be heart -- that the Jowish people themselves must organize for their defense.

"What we are dealing with new is not so much about our intellectual position but the vital concern as to what is going to happen to Jowish life, and they are afraid it will introduce here in America a lot of Jowish organizations in the defense of Jowish rights, because they feel that that undermines their position, disturbs them, embarrases them, and they feel as if they have some into a new world, but scenar or later they will have to defend themselves against these conditions, though they prefer rather to misrepresent these conditions, than to face them.

"We are dealing now with a proposition which is materialistic, which is real. The whole Jowish world is going through a transformation in which Palostine is seriously affected. You cannot establish a free Jowish State with the whole world in arms against us, surrounded by a world in a flame of anti-Semitism. We must build up the Golus and prevent it from crumbling. That sentiment to which we are appealing to the Jows in the Whited States is the seme as we are appealing to in connection with the Zionist movement. We are appealing to the Jows to defend themselves, to free themselves from the oppression of these who want to exterminate them, and to leave it to no others to do it.

"I am sorry to say that a lot of Zionists are confused in the situation. They are afraid of the consequences and feel as if we are berrowing trouble and disturbing the tenor of Jewish life. We postponed the issue when we made the compromise of peace with the American Jowish Committee and wont out of business when the war was over. We made compromises in connection with the Jowish Agoncy. We did that gladly and willingly, but in the issues involwed at the prosont timo there is no possibility for further compromise; the issue has to be fought out, and I am convinced that we, the Zionist blee in Jowish life should be firm and dotormined to move on with these elections. The same gentlemon new opposed will be convinced ultimately that it is to their interests to come in and have unity mong Jows, but not until we have demonstrated the power and strongth of union, will they be prepared to come in and establish a Jowish pooplo warthy of the name, in the service of wich thousands will be proud to sacrifico overything they possess. This spirit of sacrifico can only be evoked if we build up the fooling that Palestine is the centre, and around it is a bastion of defense which cannot be overthrown.

"We are hopeful here that today at this moting the Zienists will begin to realize that this a pathy among some Zienist leaders ought to disappear, and vote when the day comes.

"It is better to have these printed statements from the opposition so that the public can read the difference, and not have only one-sided attacks and no reply. If this goes on for another two or three wooks, the air will be cleared and new forces will be created, and out of this that will be created by the American Jowish Congress, the Zienist movement is bound to have greater benefit and tremendous signifance to the future of our work."

Mr. Goldborg pointed out that many of the mon who are active in the Zionist movement consider it their proper duty to be active in the work of the Amorican Jowish Congross. Without the aid of the Zionists, the Amorican Jowish Congross would novor havo come into being . Not only the leaders but the rank and file of the Zionist Organization made it possible. The Zionist Organization folt that it was essential for us to indicate that Zionists are not moroly satisfied to build a Homoland for the Jows in Palestine but also teach Jows how to fight and to defend themselves. Now it is evident that we have noglocted a great deal. President Wilson agreed to the Peace Treaty because he was afraid the League of Nations may be ready to sacrifice cortain points, which now have come to plaguo us. Palostino became very important to us, and we had to raise 65 or 65% of the budget, so we gave up many points to win over the rich. The acstion is: Have we the right now to stand by, and on the basis of a promiso, give up the fight for Jowry? We believe in a boycett; the non-Zionists and anti-Zionists do not believe in it. We believe in domonstration; they do not boliove in them. Perhaps they are very sincere. Rabbi Goldenson may be a vory honost man and an ideal man. Since he is an ideal man, and, as Dr. Wise indicatod, an inti-nationalist, Dr. Goldenson does not believe that the Jows have a right to do anything except maintain their philosophy of roligion. Rabbi Goldonson is not even in the Agency. He denies that we have a right to build our Homoland. Ho denies that there is any bond among Jows in the world except that of roligion.

Mr. Goldborg expressed the bolief that Zionists have been megligent, and because of that noglect, many of our members do not understand the issue now before us. It is not sufficient that our loaders are working; we actually need the rank and file. Hadassah refuses to participate in the American Jowish Congross activity, which implies their disbelief in the need for unity among the Jows. In the referendum we invited the various groups to unite as one voice, but they do not want to accept the principle that the majority rules, and they accuse us of boing dictatorial and totalitarian. Zionism is a question of the Jowish pooplo .. Not only the Zionists, but the entire Jowry of America should have a voice in the problems of the refugees coming from Austria and Germany. The American Jowish Committee and other groups refuse to come in and discuss the question. If, as Mr. Lipsky says, we are the very backbone of the nevemont, wo must have the nan-power, and the Zionist nevement must do its full sharo in this emergency. On the agenda of the Executive and the Administrative Committee mostings of the 20A should be placed the American Jowish Congress, so that it becomes a real novement of which the Zionists will be a constituent part.

Mr. Spicohandlor folt that something is basically wrong with the American Jowish Congress nevement. He did not agree with Mr. Lipsky's views.

- 14 -

Instead of being called to the Zionist Organization, we are called to some other organization, which will eventually, he believed, become the Frankenstein of the Zionist movement. Right new the attention of the Jewish people is being drawn away from the Palestine scene. According to Mr. Lipsky, the forces of the Zionist nevement will have to be gathered through the American Jewish Congress. We ought to be glad that the American Jewish Committee and others are not joining with the American Jewish Congress. He reiterated his belief that the work must be done through the Zionist Organization, and commended the National Beard of Hadassah for having passed a resolution against participating officially in the American Jewish Congress. Hadassah is courageous, he said; Hadassah understands that the aim of the Zionist movement is a Jewish State in Palestine and that the Zionist Congress should be the only Jewish Congress. Only Zionists should deal with the problems of the Jewish people he declared.

Mr. Allen stated that he favors theCongress, having been one of its organizers and having held the position of Hebrow Secretary of the Congress twenty years age. What he will say, therefore is intended to help strengthen the Congress and to make it a really potent factor in the affairs of Jewry in this country. Hence, he expressed the opinion that the printed statement of the Congress, "that we favor a united agency along democratic lines, in accordance with American ideals" is ambiguous and should be made more specific. American Jewry should be urged to vote for the American Jewish Congress, he felt, and if the Congress succeeds in getting 500,000 vetes, that in itself will establish the potency of the Congress in all Jewish affairs. He proposed, therefore, that this meeting should call upon the efficers of the Congress either to medify the language of the proposal, or to eliminate it, and only to call upon American Jewry to wete for delegates in the eming election, thus indicating to the rest of the world and to American Jewry that we want a democratic form of representation.

Mr. Elihu Stone observed that some of us can remember when Mr. Lipsky delivered the same speech with the same forver and conviction against the Congress a few years ago.

(Horo Mr. Lipsky rose to a point of order, to correct that observation; namely, that Mr. Stone referred to remarks made by him at the time when the question of the World Jowish Congress was under discussion.)

Dr. Wise objected to the personal observations made by Mr. Stone, instead of discussing the question before the Committee: namely, shall this body, affiliated with the American Jowish Congress, take action on the elections and referendum, and specify the action to be taken.

Mr. Stone continued by stating that the observations made by Mr. Spicehandler are real. We den't know in advance what elements will constitute the Congress, mor their basic ideologies. Therefore, Zionists ought to have certain safeguards. Palestine should not be placed on the agenda of the Congress as a confreevoisial matter, but must become put of the fundamental law of the Congress. Mr. Stone agreed, however, that we should cooperate fully, and register and wate, and let Zionists dominate the next Congress.

Mr. Lipsky desired to correct the record. He said that the remarks made by Mr. Steme in connection with his change of position were based on a misreading of the record. He had appeared before the Administrative Committee of the Zionist Organization, in an argument against the calling of the World Jowish Congress at a cortain time. He said he had always been an oppenent of democratic elections in the American Jowish Congress, but, being a democratic in the Congress, he acquiesced in the majority decision which was made by the Zionists and by the Administrative Committee of the ZOA, at Zionist Conventions and at Congress moetings at which Zionists prodominated. He has never opposed the American Jowish Congress in any form, hence the remarks of Mr. Stone are entirely incorrect and unwarranted.

Mr. Richards said that he did not sympathize with the point of view of Rabbi Goldensen nor with the opposite point of view of Mr. Spicehandler. Though in his opinion popular elections are too sumbersome and difficult, new that this has been decided upon, the ZOA, as an affiliate of the Congress, must take its part in the election. He expressed the here that this election will help to strengthen the Congress and help to create a more vigorous agoney to strengthen the Congress and help to create a more vigorous agoney to strengthen the Congress and help to create a more vigorous agoney to combat anti-Semitism and fight for Jewish rights. However he believed that the idea that the Congress will bring unity into American Jewish life and be the uniting agoney in American Jewry, is an illusion. There have been times when the heads of the Sionist Organization supported the Congress, and semetimes they did not, he added. He approciated the more vigorous and more consistent attitude of the Zionists toward the Congress, which would strengthen it as a factor in American Jewish life.

Dr. Wiso said he did not think it necessary to argue very nuch about this mattor. Mr. Lipsky has put the case unansworably well. Both he and Mr. Lipsky had the privilage a few days age of having a conference with a number of distinguished Gontlomon representing other 'merican Jewish organizations. They were in conforence for two and a half hours and it was all conducted in a friendly manner. The major objection to the American Jowish Congress elections and the official referendum was this: That if we succeed in having a great election and an overwho lming vote for the referendum, we will create an impression of Jewish solidarity which will injuro us in the sight of non-Jows. There was no balancing of consideration; there was no weighing of the hurt that is done by non-solidarity and divisivonoss in Jowish life. But we were asked to eensider that we would croate an impression that would be hurtful if we made it clear that Jows are united. Dr. Wass added that he found uttor ance of that foar in the statement of Dr. Golionson. This mooting should affor a rosclution of protost against the intolorable and unpractical use of the term totalitariar and the use of the torm Hitlor-like in connection with any action taken by any Jowish boly.

Roplying to statements made by Messrs. Stone and Spiechandler, Dr. Wise said that he believed they have a case against the Congress. Mr. Spiechandler he thought seemed to feel that the ZOA or the World Ziemist Organization should not accept the Galuth as a separate problem, that it is morely tributary to Zienism, and he foresees the danger of a strong Galuth dealing with Galuth problems. As a good Zienist, Mr. Spiechandler knows that we have had that problem before us for twenty years, and that the ultimate and considered decision of the Zienists was that the Zienist Organization could not deal with Galuth problems. As an example, Dr. Wise sited Dr. Weizmann's statement to the effect that he cannot go to Geneva and speck for the Zienist Organization or for the Jowish Agency, and on the following day met with the Polish Ambassader or representative at Geneva when he has wer ever to Zienism; and then attend a session of the League of Nations at Geneva. Mr. Stone is afraid, Dr. Wise said, that Zienian may not have its dominant place in the American Jowish Congress. The American Jowish Congress was initiated in behalf of Zienian, Dr. Wise pointed out. There is only one purpose, namely, Palestine, and a denocratic organization of Jowish life. Mr. Justice Brandeis with his one-track mind, and his one supreme devotion to Palestine, was really not concorned about anything else than this: the denocratic organization of Jowish life on behalf of Palestine and on behalf of Zienian . But Mr. Brandeis did not for esse cortain things that were going to happen and that have appened for the last twenty years. New the elections are here; shall we refrain from the elections? Mr. ^Richards night say that it is ill-advised to have elections now, Dr. Wise added; but even Mr. Richards, with his prognesis for the future, is prepared to admit that we must go to the elections as far as unity is concerned.

Roplying to Mr. Allon's statement regarding the referendum, Dr. Wise pointed out that every election fixes a referendum. For example, the referendum of an Amorican political election is: Do you accept the Democratic or the Republican platform? We do not have two platforms; we do not have two referenda; we have one referendum. How can we leave out the democratic and representative basis, Dr. Wiso asked? Is it Zionism to roject democracy? Horzl's supreme aim was the democratic organization and solf-liboration of the Jewish pooplo. If Horzl had lived howould have been two years younger than Justice Brandeis. But anything that savorod of domosratic solf-organization Herzl believed in. That is why he called a Congress. Every Congress deals with a referendum. Naturally, this referendum is a simple, hencest question. The Chairman, as a lawyor and a judge, knows how difficult it is to print four lines. Howmany of the articles of the Constitution of the United States is anyone able simply to define and say they are clear beyond the shadow of a doubt, Dr. Wise asked. Mr. Lipsky and our associates, as well as himsolf, are not such conjuses that they could draw up a four-line referendum which is beyond all doubt and boyond all criticism, Dr. Wiso doclared, but they had dono thoir bost.

Dr. Wiso appoald to Mr. Spicohandler and Mr. Stone, as well as to all prosent, that, as Zionists and as Jows, they should not woto against the ZOA's participation in the elections and in the referendum. Dr. Wise added that if ho thought that any organization of the Galuth in the world today would in any way hurt Zionish or Erotz Yisrool, he would give up the organization of the Galuth. For him, he reinerated, Palestine comes before anything else. And the same is true of Mr. Lipsky. Both he and Mr. Lipsky feel that the organization of Jowish life in the Galath on a denocratic basis contributes to the strongthening and ultimato unification of Jowish life everywhere, in the interest of Eretz Yisreel. Dr. Wise added that he had not gone into the Zionist novement in order to be Prosident; as an old, old Zionist he knew that the more Jewish life is strongthened on the basis of a democratic and representative life, the more will we be able to do for Palosting. The asti-Zionists have suddenly been resurrected. The non-Zionists of the Agency are beginning to make uttorances. Against us are the assimilationists; against us is Tomple Emanu-El. But lot us, he urged, nationalist, Zionist Jows stand togother and voto as one for the elections and for the referondum.

Mr. Kahn said it is clear that we nust cooprate in order to make this offort a success, and the full cooperation of the Jowish press must be calisted. In this connection he urged that "The Day" be asked to do its full duty. The Chairman ruled this proposal out of order.

Mr. Cowen then moved, and it was seconded and carried

THAT, as an affiliate of the American Jowish Congress, the Zionist Organization of America reaffirms its support of the Congress and its approval of the elections and referendum, and urges all Zionist Districts and members to expedite this work and participate in the election.

(this was passed by a vote of 31 against 2)

PROPOSAL OF JUDGE ROSENBLATT FOR A "UNITED STATES OF PALESTINE":

"I am pleased to liston to Zionist speeches because in Pelestine there are no Zionist speeches. Palestine offers you that platform upon which we can all unite.

"There are no secrets. Nobedy really knows what is going to happen. There are two theories: one is the theory of the President of the World Zienist Organization, that the Technical Commission will report for Partition in about two months, and that in about four months we will be ready for a World Zienist Congress, and Partition will become a fait accompli. There is another opinion in Palestine, that the Technical Commission will give its blessings to Partition, but democratically, they will say that 'technically' it is impossible.

"From the point of view of the Palestine population, generally, we are slowly coming to the conclusion that the whole issue of Partition, as formulated, unwittingly has become a false issue; that the man who is for Partition, has a picture of a Jowish State that will include all of Galileo, Haifa, the coastal plain and the Sharen Valley, and in part at least, New Jerusalem, and the Negev to be reserved for later occupation by the Jews. And seeing that picture in his mind, he says he is ready to sacrifice, Mablus, Tulkeren and Jonin which 'we haven't got anyway' in order to get a Jewish State.

"The man against Partition, on the other hand, has an entirely different mental picture. He is convinced that Northern Galilee will not be ours; that Haifa we will never get because England wants to maintain a maval base there; that Jerusalem is out of the question; that the corrider will split the little Jewish State so that it becomes an impossibility; that the Negev will never bd ours; that this reduced little state, perhaps half the size of Connecticut, twice the size of Rhode Island, is an impossibility politically, economically, etc.

"The difficulty is one of definition. If we accept the first picture, the chances are that many people who are condemning Partition will be ready to make the compromise. It is largely because of this view that it became ovident in Palestine, month after month, while the discussions were going on throughout the world, that we organized a committee in Haifa to study the whole question. The Committee consists of Herman Struck, Barth, Soleweitcheck, Kaplansky and myself. After it was organized, we found that only one of us is for Partition. The other four were against Partition. We had on our Committee three formor members of the Zionist Executive. We represented three parties -- two were Mizrachists, and General Zionist, and Kaplansky represented the Histadrut and practically broke with his and party on the gestion of Partition. We began to study this problem anow, and we came to the conclusion - which all of us unanimously accepted - that perhaps we'can eat out pie and have it'. It was the feeling of everyone -- beautifully expressed by Soleweitchek, that the reason he cannot accept Partition is because he cannot admit for a memory that he should need a passport in order to go to Nablus or Jonin.

"And so we formulated something that is more than a more proposition. We formulated a principle largely berrowed from American procedent whereby we can have a Jowish State and we don't have to have Partition. One thing was clear to all of us -- even to the most pronounced anti-Partitionist -- that once the flag of the Jowish State had been unfurled -- it became clear to us that morely yelling 'Partition' would not sway the great Jowish masses who felt once the Jowish flag was unfurled, we would have to find a way, if possible, to keep the Jowish State idea intact, and at the same time not to divide Palestine. And we worked out a plan something like this: the recognition of two states -- a Jewik State and an Arab State -- united together in a federal union, comented through the British mandated territory over Hazareth, Bathlehem and old Jerusalen, and through this fodoral government to keep an undivided Palestine; the Fodoral government boing one of delegated powers, restricted particularly to foreign affairs, defonso, ourroncies, customs, but leaving every other right and privilege and sovoroign power, such as we recognize in the State of New York, New Jorsey and Ponnsylvania, for instanco, within the province of the recognized territories. On such a basis you would not need barbed wire fonces between the two states. The states would be connected and divided like New Jersey from Pennsylvania with state line markings. You have the George Washington Bridge contining two statos, or Kansas City sproad ovor Missouri and Kansas, and the river, instead of separating them, uniting them.

"No did not want to do mything which night be construed as a hindrance in political mogotiations, so we submitted our plans to the Jewish Aconey, and finally the matter was presented to Dr. Weizmann. The following is a communication from Soleweitchek about the conversation that Karlansky had with Dr. Weizmann about the whole plan:

> "Weizaann is sympathetically inclined toward your initiative and thinks our Committee is loin; semething useful in working out a concrete plan on the basis of the proposal. Weizaann stated that in influential circles in London proposals similar to this have been considered. When Kaplansky asked Dr. Weizmann for his opinion with regard to this, on his return to Palestine, he said that he very much appreciated the initiative of Resemblatt in these activities. He was not propared to intervene in the question of his travelling to America or returning to Palestine."

"In view of the confused reports coming to Palestine from America, and the fact that the four members of the Committee in Palestine are studying and ready to push this plan, it night be important for no to come to America and try to explain between Partition and anti-Partition, that there is a brdge of pace, first for us, and secondly for Palestine.

"I have not enough time for a complete analysis. The difficulty about Cantonization is that it involves practically nothing more than local solfgovornment to be supervised by the same type of British officials who have tried to run the Mandate for twenty years, who are therewilly unacquainted with local conditions. There is also the danger that Cantonization always puts the emphasis on a contral govornment, a foderal govornment, or a general govornment. Then we are face to face with what is a life and death struggle in Palestine. The question of immigration. If we can got a free and unrestricted Jowish immigration in Palostino for the next 20 years -- and we are given room for it -- there is no question that every other problem can be not. The only danger up to new has been the very simple one -- we can got peace with the Arabs if we agree to cut off insigration. That is something, of course, that we can never accept. That is why those who talk about temporary minorities, temporary restrictions in immigration, must be repudiated and will be rejected by the Jows of Palestine, because they know that it is a life and death measure to them. And free and unrestricted immigration is important not only because of the Jows in Eastern and Contral Europe, but because the very life blood of Palestine depends upon it. 450,000 Jews are unable to increase, are unable to develop economically and build up the country, oven if they give us a big territory that we will not be able to ponotrato because there is no immigration.

"On the other hand, peace with the Arabs is essential provided we can got a just and lasting peace which will give us the maximum of innigration. And so we have discussed this matter informally again with Arab leaders, without commitments, and there is every reason to believe that there is an opportunity to put this thing through -- of a Jewish State much larger than we can hope for, if we put it through in the teeth of opposition. If we can convince the Arabs that they can go to Haifa, to Jaffa and the ceast through the Jewish State, we reduce the whole basis of argument -- not setting up a Helland or Belgium or Switzerland or France, but a New York, New Jersey and Pannsylvania, united in federal form. We can then have the argument that we get the whole of Galileo included, Haifa, the Sharen, and possibly setting up the Jegev as federal torritory to which both Jews and Arabs might be able to innigrate, and eventually of course that must be a Jewish State.

"The other, Cantonization, may take away some of that freedom to regulate our own legislation through the Jowish State. That is why we have accepted the word "federal" and rejected the word "confederation" for devicus reasons. It has been used by Arabs to unite the Arabs of Spria and Iraq with Palestine, and to create a Jowish minority and take away from Nablus, Tulkeren and Jonin. If we take in this Arab State of Nablus, Tulkeren and Jonin, and Trans-Jordan in equal partnership, you build up an undivided Palestine. However I have reasen to expect that our pull to the Arabs to Haifa an Jerusalen will be greator for them than to Dancseus and Baghdad."

(Hore the Chairman asked about free immigration -- whether into the whole of Palestine or Jawish Palestine).

Judro Fosonblatt roplied as follows:

"In Palostino we are building our own federal system. We can surrender a great many things but not Jowish imigration. We must determine the coonomic and political absorptive capacity of Jowish Palestine. This brings up the question whether Jews are likely to neve freely from the Jewish to the Arab State. To cannot expect that in the beginning they will be able to do that, for the Arabs will be afraid that we will swamp then in ten years. To affact that, we are working on a schome of fodoral government which should have the right to decide what would be the rights of the citizens of one state if they nove for residence, or torporary rosidonce or lusiness, or sejourn in other states. This would give us the right to pomotrate into the Negov and the right to free innigration within the Jowish area -- which would be good for twenty years, and in the course of these twonty years we hope that the respective rights of Jows in the Arab state and Arabs in the Jowish State will be safeguarded -- and they will need us at least as much as wo will need thon, because Haifa and Galilee will be in the Jowish State. That will near reciprocal arrangements, and it will be possible that we will be able at least oconomically to ponotrato the Arab State. Furthermore under one system of customs, we would got the benefit of a large free trade territory upon which industries could work."

Rabbi Millor inquirod from Judge Rosenblatt whether Groat Birtain will have a part in this?

Judgo Rosonblatt roplied:

"All this is subject to change and offers morely a basis upon which we can build on the principle of peace plus innigration. If we cannot get innigration, we will reject peace. The Federal Council will consist of five persons, two of when would be Jows, two Arabs, and presided over by the High Connissioner over the mandated territory.

"Great Britain would have to handle foreign affairs and defense, customs, interstate commerce, etc."

Dr. Wise stated: "If there is a fear, and I have it constantly, that if there be Partition, we will not get Upper Galilee, nothing north of Haifa, nothing south of Jaffa, and we may even less New Jerusdam, what advantage does this plan offer to the Arabs, which will nove then to be ready to say that, even in the temperary Jewish State you can have Upper Galilee and we will be satisfied?"

Julgo Rosenblatt replied: "Tody over a simil state without Galiloo, the Arabs will not accept but would have to be imposed. But the moderate party of the Arabs are disgusted beyond measure. It is only terror that keeps them where they are. Once an actual sottlement is made, I am absolutely convinced that the Arabs will accept it, perhaps with this reservation: if we have a separate Jowish state with a barbed wire fence, we will have emitimued attacks. If Great Britain decrees that there be two states and united through some federal form, I am absolutely convinced that it will be accepted. Once Great Eirtain inposes that, we wan get Arab public opinion to support it. "Everyone has fears, but Great Britain is also getting tired, and she will ultimately put through either Fartition which is not acceptable to us, or she will go back to the Mandate, which is worse yet, because with restricted immigration we will be hopelessly lost. Therefore possibly the third alternative of federalism, tied up so that Great Britain at least will have vote power restricted to foreign affairs, customs, etc. -- that on such a basis, I an convinced that we will win sufficient Arab support to make it a lasting federal union and to get immigration which is the life bleed of the country."

Mooting adjourned 6:30 P.M.

Rospoctfully submitted

MORRIS MARGULIES

Socrotary



ALGONQUIN 4-3600

ZIONISTS



111 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YCRK

Lay 31, 1938

TO THE CHAIRLEN AND SECRETARIES OF ZIONIST DISTRICTS:

Doar Friends:

1. NEW DISTRICT CHARTER IN PLAQUE FORE:

A new and improved charter, in plaque form, finished in the so-called Perceleid Process, is new available to all Districts, in accordance with arrangements made with the producers of this new type of plaque. Districts are new able to obtain at the moderate cost of only \$2.00 complete, including postage, a new charter mounted on a beautiful streamlined plaque with a glazed surface, smooth as percelain tile. It is unbreakable and can be washed readily with a damp cloth. The new plaque will save Districts the expense of framing, as the plaque has an attractive border in manegany finish, with the charter edged by a border of gold leaf. The back of each plaque is finished in a dark walnut wood stain, and is equipped with a special hanger.

We have succeeded in obtaining such plaques at half-price, and we warmly recommend Districts desiring to obtain the new and improved charters to make immediate reservation for them by remitting checks for \$2.00 together with the exact name of the District.

We are enclosing horowith a photostatic copy of this plaque. Although it depicts the plaque in its surface form, the photograph does not reflect the fine appearance of the original.

II. ILPORTANT REPRINT:

We are enclosing herewith a Reprint of an absorbing statement entitled "On Farshy Ground" by Rabbi Edw. L. Israel, containing a vigorous exposition of the Zionist ideology and program. We believe that this pamphlet will serve to refute many misropresentations and distortions of Zionism

STEPHEN S. WISE President

ISRAEL GOLDSTEIN JOSEPH KRAEMER WILLIAM M. LEWIS ABBA HILLEL SILVER ELIHU D. STONE NATHAN STRAUS Vice-Presidents

Mossus Bornensess Chairman, Admin. Committee

LUDWIG LEWISOHN Honorary Secretary

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

EXECUTIVE

LOUIS LEPENY CHARLES A. COWEN M. MALDWIN FERTIG Abbahan Goldstein Rabbi Edward L. Israel Rabbi Ibrael H. Levinthal Samtel Markewich Rabbi Iaving Miller Charles Ress A. J. Rongy Carl Sherman William I. Siegel Robert Stold

Associate Members ISAAC IMBER ADRIAN SCHWARTZ

FINANCE COMMITTEE Louis P. Rocken Chairman

MORRIS WEINBERG HARRY P. FIRRST Treasurers

ABRAHAN KEUMBEIN Abrahan Liebovitz Ellas Perins Louis Rimeny Sigmund Thau

ISRASS, MALTIN Auditor May 31, 1938

. . . .

sproad by cortain circlos.

We are ready to furnish you for distribution any quantity ordered, free of charge.

-2-

Please indicate on the enclosed card the number of copies you wish us to send you.

With Zion's Grootings,

Sincoroly yours,

all coulis rris Margulios,

Secretary.



PLEASE FILL OUT AND DETACH

I am onclosing herowith \$2.00 for which kindly send no a now charter in plaque form.

Full name and number of District

City and Stato

Signod

President or Secretary

ZIONISTS BENTLEY'S CODE



111 FIFTH AVENUE NEWYORK

May 31, 1938.

TO THE CHAIRMEN AND SECRETARIES OF ZIONIST DISTRICTS:

Dear Follow-Zionists:

ELECTIONS TO AMERICAN JEWISH CONGRESS:

Once more we desire to draw the attention of the Districts to the fortheoming Elections of the American Jewish Corgress, scheduled to be held on June 25-26-27. All Districts are urged to take an active part in the efforts to obtain the <u>largest possible number of registrations</u> in order to help secure in the coming Elections at least one million votes in defense of Jewish rights at home and abread, including Palestine.

Prior to the Elections, nomination conventions are to be held in all of the Congressional districts into which the country has been divided by the Congress Board of Elections. Zionist Districts are urged to take the initiative in the convening of these nomination conventions at which District Board of Elections will be organized and required number of candidates for delegates will be nominated.

As a constituent body of the American Jewish Congress, it behaves us to exert every effort to insure the success of this important activity in which every Jew concerned with the fate of his brothron in Europe must participate.

We therefore call upon all Districts to take the initiative in onlisting the cooperation of all Organizations in the community, both in bringing about a large registration and in securing a 100% turn out in the elections.

With Zion's Grootings,

Sincercly yours,

rollic Julio

Marris Margulios Secrotary

STEPHEN S. WISE President

ISBABL GOLDSTEIN JOSEPH KRAEMER WILLIAM M. LEWIS ABBA HILLEL SILVER ELIHU D. STONE NATHAN STRAUS Vice-Presidents

Monnin Bornanneno Chairman, Admin. Committee

LCDWIG LEWISOHN Howevery Secretary

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

EXECUTIVE

LOUIS LIPSKY CHARLES A. COWEN M. MALOWIN FERTIG ABRAHAM GOLDSTEIN RABBI EDWARD L. ISRAEL RABBI ISRAEL H. LEVINTHAL SANCEL MARKEWICH RABBI INVING MILLER CHARLES RESS A. J. RONGY CARL SHERMAN WILLIAM I. SHEREL RORET SZOLD

Associate Members ISAAC IMBER ADRIAN SCHWARTE

FINANCE COMMITTEE Louis P. Bocken Chairman

MORAIN WEINBERG HARRY P. FIERST Treasurers

ABRAHAM KRUMBEIN ABRAHAM LEBBOVITE ELIAS PREISS LOUIS RIMSKY SIGMUND THAU

ISRAEL MALTIN Auditor ALGONQUIN 4-3600

. R.

CABLE ADDRESS ZIONISTS BENTLEY'S CODE

ההמתדרות הציונית של ארצות הברית



111 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK

June 7, 1938

Dr. A. H. Silver, National Chairman UNITED PALESTINE APPEAL B U I L D I N G

Dear Dr. Silver:

I take pleasure in inviting your organization to be represented at the 41st Annual Convention of the Zionist Organization of America to be held at the Hotel Statler, Detroit, Mich., from July 2 to July 5, 1938, inclusive.

This Convention will be of unusual significance in view of the present emergency confronting the Jewish Homeland and the pressing problems relating to the situation, which the delegates will be called upon to discuss and render a decision. The demand for the removal of all immigration restrictions into Palestine in order to enable the immediate settlement of large masses of our persecuted brethren from Jermany, Austria and other "uroepan countries, will be the principal item on the agenda dealing with the political situation.

It is intended that through the medium of our forthcoming Convention shall be heard the voice of a united American Zionism in support of our just demands not only in respect to immigration but the preservation of our political rights as a whole.

The forthcoming Convention, which will mark the completion of forty one years of Zionist endeavor in America, will also be called upon to consider plans for the broadening of all phases of Zionist activities in this country, with a view to increasing the effectiveness of our efforts for the upbuilding of the Jewish National Homeland.

We are therefore eager that your organization participate in the deliberations of our Convention, in order that we may have the benefit of your counsel in all matters discussed. Accordingly, I invite you to designate three representatives with voting rights, and I shall greatly appreciate having the mames of your delegates before June 20th.

With Zion's Greetings,

Taithfully yours,

Stephen S. Wise President

STEPHEN S. WISE President

ISBARI GOLDSTRIN JOREPH KRAEMER WILLIAM M. LEWIS ARBA HILLEI, SILVER ELINU D. STONE NATHAN STRAUS Vice-Presidents

Monata ROTHENSERG Chairman, Admin. Committee

LUDWIG LEWIBOHN Honorary Secretary

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

EXECUTIVE

LOUIS LIPSKY CHARLES A. COWEN M. MALDWIN FERTIO ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDBEREN RABBI ESWARD L. ISBARL RABBI ISRAEL H. LEVINTHAL SANTEL MARKEWICH RABBI ISRAEL H. LEVINTHAL SANTEL MARKEWICH RABBI ISVING MILLER CHARLES RESS A. J. BONGY CARL SHERMAN WILLIAM I. SIEGEL ROBERT STOLD

Associate Members IRAAC IMBER ADRIAN SCHWARTE

FINANCE COMMITTEE Lotis P. Rockes Chairman

MORRIS WRINSERG HARRY P. FIRRST Treasurers

ABRAHAM KRUMBRIN Abraham Leidovitz Elias Preiss Louis Rimsky Sigmund Thau

ISRAM MALTIN Auditor

*ELEPHONE ALGONQUIN 4-3600

CABLE ADDRESS ZIONISTS BENTLEY'S CODE



111 FIFTH AVENUE NEW YORK

June 8, 1938.

TO THE CHAIRLEN AND SECRETARIES OF ZIONIST DISTRICTS:

Dear Fellow-Zionists:

In view of the pressing problems to be discussed at our forthcoming Convention at Detroit, growing out of the present emergency facing our people and the Jewish Homeland, it is our earnest hope that your District will be represented by a full complement of Delegates elected from your own midst.

This Convontion which will meet in a four-day session boginning Saturday night, July 2nd, at the Hotel Statlor, will not only be called upon to deal with questions bearing upon the development of the Zionist movement in this country, but will serve as a domonstration of national unity in support of our just domands in Palostino.

However, in the event you are unable to send a Delegato from your own group, I am attaching horewith a list of prominent Zionists who have expressed a desire to serve as proxics. Because of the short time remaining until the Convention, I would urgo you to make your designations immodiately by filling out the Dologates' Election Blank and roturning it to this office without delay.

With Zion's Grootings,

Sincerely yours,

Valla uhes

orris Margulios, Scorotary

STEPHEN S. WHEE President.

ISBAEL GOLDSTEIN **JOSEPH KRAEMER** WILLIAM M. LEWIS ABBA HILLEL SILVER. ELINU D. STONE NATHAN STRACE Vice-Presidents

MORRES ROTHENBERG Chairman, Admin. Committee

LUNWIS LEWISSIN **Honorary** Secretary

MORRER MARCULERS. Secretary

EXECUTIVE

LOUIS LIPSKY CHARLES A. COWEN M. MALOWIN FORTIG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDSTEIN RABBE EDWARD L. ISRAEL RABBI ISRAEL H. LEVINTHAL SAMUEL MARKEWICH RABBI INVING MILLER CHARLES RESS A. J. Rosery CARL SHERMAN WILLIAM I. STROPL ROBERT SZOLD

Associate Members ISAAC INSEE ADDRAN SCHWARTZ

FINANCE COMMITTEE LOUIS P. ROCKER Chairman

MORRER WEINBERG HARRY P. FIERST Treasurers

ABRAHAM KRUMBERN ABBAHAM LINBOVITZ ELIAS PRESS LOUIS RIMSKY SEGMUND THAU

ISBARL MALTIN Auditor

CLASS OF SE		***		DAT	CHECK
TELEGRAM DAY LETTER	FULL RATE	WI	SIL	KN	LOCT'G INFMN.
NIGHT MESSAGE NIGHT LETTER Patrone should of desired: otherwi	NIGHT LETTER SHIP RADIOGRAM erik class of service to the same will be	U	NIO	N	TIME FILED
1 transmitted	as a full-rate	R. B. WHITE PRESIDENT	NEWCOMB CARLTON CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD	J. C. WILLEVER FIRST VICE-PRESIDENT	2

Send the following message, subject to the terms on back hereof, which are hereby agreed to

June 9 1938

RABBI ABBA HILLEL SILVER CLEVELAND, OHIO

ON EVE OF OUR FORTHCOMING CONVENTION AM SENDING YOU THIS ELEVENTH-HOUR APPEAL TO REDOUBLE YOUR EFFORTS TO BRING YOUR MEMBERSHIP UP TO THE FULLEST STRENGTH. FROM THIS CONVENTION A CALL WILL GO FORTH TO GREAT BRITAIN AND LEAGUE OF NATIONS URGING IMMEDIATE SUSPENSION OF IMMIGRATION RESTRICTIONS IN ORDER TO EMABLE SETTLEMENT IN PALESTINE OF LARGE MASSES OF OUR PERSECUTED BRETHEREN FROM GEEMANY AUSTRIA AND OTHER EUROPEAN COUNTRIES. WE EXPECT EVERY SINGLE DISTRICT TO JOIN AT CONVENTION IN ACTION DESIGNED TO SECURE PULFILLMENT OF THIS DEMAND. I THEREFORE URGE UPON YOU TO SEND FULL COMPLEMENT OF DELEGATES ON BASIS OF INCREASED NEMBERSHIP IN CREER TO HELP US MAKE CONVENTION REPRESENTATIVE OF LARGEST NUMBER OF ORGANIZED ZIONISTS. WIRE OR WRITE ME IMMEDIATELY WHAT STEPS YOU ARE TAKING TO INCREASE YOUR MEMBERSHIP WITHIN MEXT FORTNIGHT.

> STEPHEN S. WISE, PRESIDENT ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA

ADDRESS BY LOUIS P. ROCKER, CHAIRMAN, DELEGATION URGING DR. GOLDSTEIN FOR ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA PRESIDENCY Aldine Club, New York, Thursday, June 9, 1938

We are mindful of the mission entrusted to us. We are here as a committee representing a large number of Zionists who have given a us the mandate to speak on their behalf.

The announcement made by Dr. Stephen S. Wise, President of the Zionist Organization of America, that he will not be a candidate for reelection as its President, is a call on American Zionists to summon a new leader to succeed Dr. Wise, under whose presidency the Zionist Organization of America has made rapid strides. He has given of his matchless leadership to the cause of Eretz Israel upbuilding. He has wielded influence as a political force in Zionist affairs both at home and abread.

We are desirous of choosing a successor in order to insure the accelleration of the progress made under Dr. Wise's leadership in the course of the last two years.

The Zionist Organization faces a two-fold problem. On the one hand as the representative of American Zionism it must exert abread its utmost influence in the political and economic problems of Palestine. On the other hand, it faces at hence the problem of organizing Zionist forces in their maximum strength, not only for the collection of funds but for the equally important task of ergenizing and administrating its organization and forces in this country. The head of the Zionist Organization must be one who will be in a position to devote his time, his energy and his ability to both of these problems.

To achieve these objectives, we call upon you, Dr. Israel Goldstein, to stand as a candidate for the presidency of the Zionist Organization of America. We see in you the embediment of these qualities that are so vitally necessary in the future strengthening of the Zionist Organization of America and in mobilizing that support which is indispensable for the cause of Palestine upbuilding.

Your fine work on behalf of the Zionist movement makes you the outstanding candidate for the presidency of our organization. Your election to this office will be the culmination of a long career in Zionist achievement that dates back two decades of Zionist service that began when you took a ... part in the organization of District No. 7. Your comparative youth will be added encouragement to bringing into our movement the youth of our country. We recall gratefully your Presidency of Young Judaca.

We feel sure that you will regard your election to the presidency not morely as a culmination and a reward for your fine work but as the acceptance of a new obligation in the furtherance of Zionist activity.

You have demonstrated your capacity for leadership as the President of the Jowish National Fund. For five consecutive terms you have raised that organization to a plane of activity hitherto unknown in the history of the Keren Kayemeth in this country. As Co-Chairman of the United Palestine Appeal, as Vice-President of the Zionist Organization of America, as the President of the Jewish Conciliation Court of America, you have demonstrated your extraordinary gifts as an able executive and leader. You enjoy the confidence of all groups in American Israel.

In asking you to declare yourself a condidate for the presidency of the Zionist Organization of America, we are mindful of the sacrifices that it will entail. We pledge you our cooperation.

This is a challenge at a time when so much hope is contored on American Ziomists. We ask you to accept and are confident that you will receive the overwhelming support of the delegates who will attend the Forty-second Annual Convention of the Zionist Organization of America that will be held in Detroit, Michigan, on July 1, 1938.

STATEMENT BY DR. ISRAEL COLDEN IN REPLYING TO DELEGATION JUNE 9, 1938

To be deemed worthy by a group of prominent Zionists of leading the forces of the Zionist Organization of America for the coming administration, is a great compliment, and imposes great responsibility.

That our foremost leader, Dr. Wise, has declined to continue as President of the Zionist Organization of America upon the conclusion of his present term, is a matter of regret to me as it is to all Zionists. Two years ago, it was my happy privilege to have played some part in his unanimous clection. Today more than ever, Dr. Vise would be the unanimous choice of American Zionists. In the light of his determined declination of a third term, how ver, the office of President will be vacant.

Fortunately, we can all feel assured that whatever may be Dr. Wise's official position in the movement, he will continue, by grace of his unparalleled gifts and unsurpassed devotion, to be our spokesman and our leader.

If the delegates at the forthcoming Zionist convention will call me to fill the vacancy in the office of Fresident, I shall accept the call to service, fully cognizant of the difficulties and responsibilities which that office will impose. Both in Palestine and here in the United States, there are not only great difficulties which lie ahead, but also great oppertunities for the Zionist Movement.

It is becoming increasingly evident that upon American Israel devolves the responsibility not only of providing the major part of the material resources for the upbuilding of the Jewish National Home, but also that of playing a very important part in the political affairs of the World Zionist Movement. By virtue of cur potential strongth as the largest free Jewish community in the world, and because of the urgent needs of the situation, we must become the strongest arm of the World Zionist Movement.

To the extent that the Zionist Organization of America can be made stronger and more officient, the fulfillment of our responsibilities can be made the more realizeable. Therefore, great emphasis should be placed in the immediate future upon effective organization, efficient administration, larger membership, and the development of a breader base for the Zionist movement in this country. The fu there are of these aims will require concentrated and continuous attention.

If elected, I shall devote myself to the daily problems of the Zionist Organization of America with the same concentration which I have given to the Jewish H tional Fund during the past five years. It will be with a heavy heart that I shall feel obliged to relinquish the Presidency of the Jewish National Fund, which has been a labor of love to me, but the larger demands of fionist service will be headed.

I have confidence in the prodominantly Zionist sentiment of American Jowry, and believe that with offective organization it can be converted into tangible assets for au cause. Louis P. Rocker Fifteen Broad Street New York

June 10, 1938

Rabbi A. H. Silver The Temple Cleveland, Ohio

My dear Rabbi Silver:

We are now on the eve of the 42nd Annual Convention of the Zionist Organization of America, which will take place in Detroit July 2nd-5th. The announcement made by Dr. Wise that he will not accept another term as President of the Zionist Organization of America, makes the question of his succession of vital concern to every Zionist in this country.

I am writing to you as a fellow Zionist and a leader of the Zionist Organization in your community, because I know you are just as concerned as we all are that the successor to Dr. Wise should be the ablest person we can command.

I am enclosing for your information a statement that I made on behalf of a delegation which called upon Dr. Goldstein, to ask him to accept our call to the leadership of the Zionist Organization of America.

I am sure you will welcome the news that appeared in today's press, that Dr. Galdstein will consent to accept a call from the Zionist Convention. I am enclosing herewith Dr. Goldstein's statement to the delegation.

Dr. Goldstein's record of Zionist service and as a brilliant administrator for the past two decades, assures us that he will make an able President of the Zionist Organization of America. I know you will wish to convey this information to your Zionist colleagues, and I would welcome a word of encouragement, so that we can assure Dr. Goldstein that he has the overwhelming support of all Zionists vitally interested in electing an efficient administration.

Sincerely yours, LOUTS P, ROOKER

MERCANTILE DISCOUNT CORPORATION

110 SOUTH DEARBORN STREET CHICAGO

A.H. ROSENBERG

June 17, 1938

My dear Friends

This is to confirm the wire sent you this week-end, which read as follows:

CONFIDENT RABBI GOLDMAN CAN BE PERSUADED ACCEPT PRESIDENCY ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA IF ELECTED. URGE COOPERATION. SUGGEST YOU INSTRUCT YOUR LOCAL DELEGATION TO DETROIT TO VOTE FOR RABBI GOLDMAN FOR PHESIDENT. APPRECIATE WORD FROM YOU TO-GITHER WITH SUGGESTIONS AS TO WHAT YOU WILL AND CAN DO IN YOUR IMMEDIATE VICINITY.

I need not tell you what a power and force Rabbi Goldman will prove as head of this most important Organization. His leadership will be a boon and value to our people. We need him.

Please follow through by wiring and writing your friends, urging them to iraft Goldman for President of the Z.O.A. I am counting on your full support and cooperation, and await word from you within a day or so.

Cordially yours, osenberg

AHRIALK

A. H. ROSENBERG

ההסתדרות הציונית של ארצות הברית



Zionist Organization of America

ST. PAUL DISTRICT

CANTOR M. GOLDBERG, SECY. TEMPLE OF AARON, ASHLAND AVE, AND GROTTO ST.

ST. PAUL, MINNESOTA

781 HAQUE AVE.

MERSCHEL HORWITZ, PRESIDENT

L. C. PERLMAN, VICE PRES.

RABBI H. M. COHEN, TREASURER

June 17,1938

Rabbi Abba Hillel Silver Cleveland, Ohio

Dear Rabbi Silver:

I know that your time is very valuable, therefore I will confine myself to a few lines.

The announcement made by Rabbi S. Wise that he will not accept another term as president of the Zionist Organization of America, makes the question of his successor a very serious problem to every Zionist.

I have attended many Zionist Conventions and, believe, that I know almost every leader in the Zionist movement. In my opinion you are the only one that can take over the task and problems of this movement with the assurance that not only every Zionist will give you his full-hearted support, but with a great deal of expectation that tens of thousands of our fellow Jews who have not yet enlisted in this Organization will come in and help the furthering of this course.

I was elected delegate and expect to attend our next Convention in Cleveland, end i an confident that if you will except the candidacy you will get the support of all the axadidated delegated. Meanwhile we will come in contact with every district in the country and I am sure that the responses will be very encouraging.

Awaiting your prompt reply, I remain

Sincerly Yours, Herselel Hourit

HH:JR

MERCANTILE DISCOUNT CORPORATION

110 SOUTH DEARBORN STREET CHICAGO

A.H. ROSENBERG

June 17, 1938

My dear Friand:

This is to confirm the wire sent you this week-end, which read as follows:

CONFIDENT RABBI GOLDMAN CAN BE PERSUADED ACCEPT PRESIDENCY ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA IF ELECTED. URGE COOPERATION. SUGGEST YOU INSTRUCT YOUR LOCAL DELEGATION TO DETROIT TO VOTE FOR RABBI GOLDMAN FOR PRESIDENT. APPRECIATE WORD FROM YOU TO-GETHER WITH SUGGESTIONS AS TO WHAT YOU WILL AND CAN DO IN YOUR IMMEDIATE VICINITY.

I need not tell you what a power and force Rabbi Goldman will prove as head of this most important Organization. His leadership will be a boon and value to our people. We need him.

Please follow through by wiring and writing your friends, urging them to draft Goldman for President of the Z.O.A. I am counting on your full support and cooperation, and await word from you within a day or so.

Cordially yours,

AHRALK

A. H. ROSENBERG

BROOKLYN REGION



ONE ELEVEN FIFTH AVENUE

NEW YORK CITY

June 24, 1938

Dear Fellow Zionist:

The coming year will for many reasons be a momentous one in the history of the Zionist movement in America. The direction of the administration of the Zionist Organization of America becomes of paramount importance, both to our movement in this country and to the status and welfare of Jews all over the world. **Executive Director**

ABRAHAM KRUMBEIN Carnestly of the opinion that Rabbi Israel Herbert Levinthal is preeminently fitted by gifts of character, personality, learning and experience to head the Zionist Organization of America as its president. Rabbi Levinthal's life-long devotion to the ideals of Zionism, his arduous work in the field and with his pen over many years, his intimate knowledge of the problems of the organization and his wide acquaintance among Zionists are assets which should be translated into an effective leadership as president.

> We therefore hope that at the forthcoming convention in Detroit your delegates will alignious LINDEN themselves with us in creating a unanimous settlement MORRIS MILLER in the convention for the election of Rabbi Levinthal MORRIS MILLER as President of the Zionist Organization of America.

We look forward to the pleasure of meeting you in Detroit.

With Zion's Greetings, we are

yours.

Sincerely

The Brooklyn Zionist Region is

Zionist Region President ook I'va

ISIDORE AARON ROBERT AUGUST NATHAN D. BALBER ABRAHAM BEIER HARRY BERMAN SAMUEL J. BOROWSKY JACOB BOSNIAK BENJ. BRAVERMAN ADOLPH BRINBERG SEYMOUR BRENNER ISAAC CARMEL HARRY COOPER MORRIS DLUGASCH CHARLES DUMAY ABRAHAM FEIT JOSEPH FELDMAN JOSEPH FINE JACOB A. FORTUNOFF JAMES H. GARMEZY LEO GILMAN HYMAN GITELSON MILTON COELL MICHAEL GOLD JOSEPH GOLDBERG IRVING GOLDENBERG ABRAHAM GOODMAN HARRY GRAYER JACK GREENBERG ALFRED GREENSTONE MORRIS GROSSMAN A. M. HELLER DAVID HELLER HARRY HALPERN SOL HORSTEIN SAMSON INSELBUCH HERMAN KAPLAN FEIBLIS KOBAK LEON KIPNIS SAMUEL KUHL HARRY LEIDOWITZ ISRAEL H. LEVINTHAL HARRY LEVIN MARGARET LEVY LEON MOHR IRVING OXENHORN MORRIS PAUKER BEN ZION PECKER RAPHAEL PINCHAS H. D. ROSENBERG JOSHUA S. RUBIN RUDOLPH SANDERS FRANK SCHAEFFER **SAMUEL SCHOENHOLTZ** LOUIS SHEPELOFF ABE SLEPIAN ABRAHAM SPICEHANDLER JOS. STEINBERG BENJ. TAISHOFF MRS. HARRY TRACEY FRANK WASSERMAN MORRIS WEINBERG JOSEPH WEISS MORRIS A. ZELDIN W. ZIEGLER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

A. D. BRAHAM JACOB H. COHEN ISIDOR A. HASSIN I. I. BUDAVSKY SAMUEL SCHLEIMER. WILLIAM I. SIEGEL NATHAN SWEEDLER

OFFICERS:

LOUIS J. MOSS

President:

SAMUEL BERSON

Vice-Presidents HARRY MARCUS Treasurer

SAMUEL ROTHSTEIN

Secretary.

NATHAN ELKIN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ALBERT D. SCHANZER.

Vice-Chairman

INFORMATION FOR DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES

FORTY-FIRST ANNUAL CONVENTION

ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA

Convention Headquarters

STATLER HOTEL

July 2-3-4-5, 1938

I. REGISTRATION OF DELEGATES AND ALTERNATES:

Registration of Delegates and Alternates to the Convention will commerce Saturday evening, July 2nd, at the Convention Headquarters, Statler Hotel and continue on Sunday, July 3rd.

Upon presenting the enclosed card at the Registration Desk you will receive your official credential.

The registration fee for Delegates is \$2.00; for Alternates \$1.00. Upon receipt of payment of registration fee, the Delegates and Alternates will receive an official badge, Convention literature, including report, etc.

The opening session of the Convention will take place on Sunday, July 3rd.

II. HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS:

Special arrangements have been made with the Statler Hotel to accommodate all Delegates, Alternates and visitors attending the Corvention. Room reservations should be made directly with the Hotel on the enclosed card. Make your reservations early and when registering at the Hotel, please state that you are attending the gionist Convention.

III. RAILFOAD FARES:

The special Convention certificates which have been in practice heretcfore have been abolished because of the new reduced fares. Office of the Rabbi 270 West 89th Street

Phone: SChuyler 4- {1400 4433



CONGREGATION B'NAI JESHURUN

NEW YORK CITY

Founded 1825

July 11, 1938

Dr. Abba Hillel Silver The Temple Cleveland, Ohio

Dear Silver:

Thanks for your cordial note. I have no regrets. On the contrary, the more I turn this matter over in my mind, the more convinced I am that the action which I took was not only the proper one from the moral standpoint, but also the wisest from the organization's standpoint.

I tried to reach you at the Commodore on Sunday, but learned that you had checked out.

What luck have you had with the Warburg matter?

Let me again thank you for your staunch comradeship at Detroit. Your support was a source of great strength and encouragement. Will you also please convey my appreciation to the leaders of your society.

ordially, yours. DR. ISRAHL GOLDSTEIN

ALGONQUIN 4-3600

CABLE ADDRESS ZIONISTS BENTLEY'S CODE

ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA

111 FIFTH AVENUE NEWYORK

JOSEPH XRAENER WELLAR M. LEWIS

WILLIAM M. LEWIS ABBA HILLEL SILVER ELIHU D. STONE NATHAN STRAUS Vice-Presidents

STRPHEN S. WINE President

ISBAR, GOLDSTREES

MOREIS ROTHENDERG Chairman, Admin. Committee

LUDWIG LEWISONN Honorary Secretary

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

EXECUTIVE

LOUIS LIPSKY CHARLES A. COWEN M. MALDWIN FERTIG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRAHAM GOLDBERG ABRA EDWARD L. ISRAEL RABBI EDWARD L. ISRAEL RABBI EDWARD L. ISRAEL RABBI EDWARD L. ISRAEL SAMUEL MARKEWICH RASHI EVING MILLER CHARLES REDS A. J. RONGY CARL SHEEWAN WILLIAM I. SURGEL ROBERT SIDLD

Associate Members ISAAC INBER ADRIAN SCHWARTZ

FINANCE COMMITTEE Locus P. Rocker Chairman

MORRIS WRINSERG HARRY P. FIRST Treasurers

ABRAHAM KRUMBEIN Abraham Lemovitz Ellas Preiss Louis Rimsky Signund Thau

Auditor

Dear Fellow-Zionist:

It gives me great pleasure to send you herewith your Credential to the 41st Annual Convention of the Zionist Organization of America to be held at the Hotel Statler, Detroit, Mich., from Saturday night, July 2nd to Tuesday, July 5th, inclusive.

Preceding the official opening of the Convention, the Delegates present will meet at an informal dinner on Friday evening, at which addresses will be delivered on the topic "A Zienist Program for American Jews".

A M'laveh Malkah will take place on Saturday evening, which will feature a program of entertainment. Refreshments will be served by Hadassah of Detroit.

Enclosed please find general instructions to Delegates as well as a Hotel reservation card.

Special arrangements have been made by us with the management of the Hotel Statler to accommodate all those attending the Convention at reduced rates, and in view of the short time left I would urge you to send in your reservation to the Hotel without delay, in order to insure your securing the choicest accommodations.

In view of the unusual significance of the forthcoming Convention which will deal with problems affecting the future of the Jewish Homeland, I trust that you will attend all the sessions.

Looking forward to the pleasure of seeing you, I am, with Zion's Greetings,

Sincerely yours, inter whet

Morris Margulies, Secretary Education Department. Z.C.A. 111 Fifth Avenue, New York City

Name of Speaker

Subject

Has Russia Solved the Jowish Problem?

(Rabbi) Samuel J. Abrams 70 Marchall Street Brookline, Mass.

M. Adler 128 CommonWealth Ave. Buffalo, N.Y.

Dr. David B. Alport Tylor, Toxas

David Aronson 1229 Queen Avenue, N. Minneapelis, Minn.

Solomon N. Bazell 753 Second Street Louisville, Ky.

Lovi Bocker 3290 Rochester Detroit, Mich.

J. Berger 3420 Grey Avenue Montreal, Canada

Albert Eilgray 501 S. Mimestone St. Springfield, Ohio

Maurice J. Bloom 176 Montgomery St. Newburgh, N.Y.

Samuel Elumenfield College of Jewish Studies 30 N. Dearborn Street Chicago, Ill.

Jacob Bosniak 450 Occon Avenue Brooklyr, N.Y. Mosos Hoss

Jewish Education in the Diaspora Jewish Economic Problems in Palestine Has Russia Solved the Jewish Problem? Jewish Solf-Government The Jews of Russia The Jews of Poland

What Can Palostine Do for American Jewry?

What I Saw in Palostino

Gorman Jows in Palestino

What Can Palestine do for American Joury?

Has Russia Solved the Jonish Problem?

Political, Oultural and Economic Zionism

Altornativo to Partition

anti-

Dunicl L. Davis Lancastor, Pa.

Ira Elsonstein 15 W. 86th Street New York City

Abr. H. Foinborg Rockford, Ill.

Norman Foldheyn President Apts. Cincinnati, Ohio

Abraham J. Feléman 145 Ballard Street Hartford, Conn.

M. Fouor United Hobrew Cong. Joplin, Mo.

Dr. Josoph L. Fink 599 Delaware lvc. Buffalo, N.Y.

Meyer Finkelstein 2054 E. 8th Street Bklyn, N.Y.

Ephraim Fischoff 355 W. Ridge Avc. State College, Fa.

Samuel Fredman 6046 Tashington Ave. Philadelphia, Ea.

Jacob Friedman 68 Calhoun Street Springfield, Mess.

N.J. Friedman Jowish Community Center Gloversville, I.Y.

Samuel Glasner Uniontown, Pa.

Maurico Goldblett Roanoko, Va.

Israel Goldman Temple Emanuel Providence, R.I. 6

2.

Subject

Private Initiative and National Capital

Zionism or Nationalism in the Diaspora?

The Jewish Problem and the Quest for its Solution

Jows in Latin Amorica

The Jewish Problem and the Quest for its Solution

History of Zionism

Jours and Arabs

Has Russin Solved the Jerish Problem?

Philosophic and Religious Asports of of Zionism

The Present Situation in Cormany

What can Palestine do for American Jeury?

Jours and Arabs

Hebrey Novelists in Palestine Today



M. Goodman Ransom Strect Loxington, My.

Albert H. Geldstein Rock Island, Ill.

David A. Goldstein 325 S. 37th St. Oraha, Neb.

Horbert S. Coldstein 225 7. 86th Street New York City

Bonj. H. Gorrelick 15 Fhyotte Street Cambridge, Mass.

Abram M. Granowitz Both Zion Tomplo Johnstown, Fa.

David Graubart 2938 Palmer Square Chicago, Ill.

Allan S. Green 3028 W. Chestnut Ave. Altoona, Fa.

Emonuel Green 20 N. Lincoln Ave. Aurora, Ill.

Joseph H. Gumbiner Selma, Alabama

Abraham Haselkorn 60 Carrol Street Poughkoepsie, N.Y.

Eugene Hibshman Temple Both Israel Union Avenue Altoona, Fa.

Samuel Herewitz 309 S. Monroe Ave. Green Bay, Wis.

Subject

-

2. 10

3.

What Can Palestine Do For American Jewry?

Mas Russia Solved the Jovish Problem?

Philosophic and Religious Asposts of Zionism Dramatic Moments in Zionist History

Philosophic and Religious Aspects of Zionism

Zionism Since the Balfour Declaration

Alternative to Partition

Philosophic and Religious Aspects of Zionism

Histadrut

Zionist Achievements in Palestino

Has Russia Solved the Jewish Froblem?

What Can Palestine Do For American Jewry?

The Land and its Possibilitio;

The Land and its Fossibilities The Jewish Problem and the Quest for its Solution



Robert F. Jacobs 1218 Hudson St. Hoboken, H.J.

Abr. I. Jacobson 131 Guy Fark Ave. Amsterdam, NY

Harry Katchen 310 S. Fulten St. Allentown, Fa.

Dr. Jacob Katz 945 E. 163rd St. Bronx, NY

Louis Matzoff 3613 Locust St. Philadolphia, Fa.

Benj. Kelson 1204 11th Street Wichita Falls, Toxas

Isaac Klein 40 Cliftwood St. Springfield, Mass.

Maurice S. Kleinborg Ventnor, N.J.

Philip A. Lanch 1100 17th Ave. Scattle, Wash.

Arnold K. Lasker 2448 University Ave. Bronx, N.Y., or Joodbine, N.J.

Maurico A. Lazowick 20 Fairfield Ave. 3. Norwalk, Conn.

Arthur Lobositz Olcan, N.Y.

Charles B. Lessor Jackson, Mich.

Maurice Lyons Blytheville, Ark. 4.

1. 2

١.,

Subject

Philosophy and Frogram of the Labor Factions

England and Palostino

Class Strugglo in Palostino

What Did the Royal Commission Recommend?

Parties of Palostine

Political, Cultural and Economic Zionism

Pinskor Secular Nationalist Movement

Zionism or Nationalism in Diaspora?

Histadrut and its Institutions

Altornative to Partition

Jabotinsky

Zionist Achievements in Palestine

A.D. Gordon

spoakor

5. Subject

Roubon J. Magil 153 Richmond Ave. Juffalo, N.J.

Jamica, H.Y.

Jerome J. Malino 30 Test Street Danbury, Conn.

C. Manollo 52 J. Donnick lvc. Youngstown, 0.

S.H. Markovitz The Temple Fairfield Ave. and W. Wayne St. Fort Jayne, Ind.

S.H. Motz 36 Channing St. N.W. Washington, D.C.

Albert Lichels Natchez, Liss.

A. Elihu Michelson 1307 Main Street Pookskill, N.Y.

Meyer Miller 23 J. Elm St. Greenwich, Conn.

Abr. E. Mill(ram 1631 N. 32nd St. Philadelphia, Fa.

Ahron Opher Hebrow Sheltering & Guardian Society Fleagantville, N.Y.

Herbort Parzen Westwood, N.J.

Harry D. Fastor 228 N. Frink Pooria, Ill. History of Zionism

Jours and Arabs

Jewish Law and Law Courts in Palestine

Jous and Arabs Palestine in Torld History

The Land and its Fossibilities

Culture in Falestine Fossibilities After Fartition.

Music and Art Personal Obligations

Class Strugglo in Talestine

Jewish Self-Government

Histadrut

Jewish Achievements in Palestine

Current Parties in Zionism

Critique of Zionism

. 1

Spoaker

Martin Forley 763 Querbes Ave. Outroment, Montreal, Canada

I.E. Philo Temple Roder Shalom Youngstown, JA.

David Folish Codar Rapids, Io.

Julius J. Frice 1560 Grand Concourse Bronx, N.Y.

H.R. Rabinovitz 2207 McDonnel St. Sioux City, Iowa

Faul Reich 1506 Colonial Ave. Norfolk, Va.

Harry R. Richmond Whichita, Kansas

Eph. Rosenzacia Crystal Laka Carbondalo, Fa.

Samuel Rosinger Deaumont, Texas

Jacob J. Rudin Tomple Joth El Great Nock, L.I.

Edwart T. Sandrow e/o United Community Contor Codarmarst, L.I.

Harold I. Saperstein Temple Emanuel Lynbrook, L.I.

Josoph Sarachek 1414 Shakespeare Ave. Dronx, N.Y.

Lawrence W. Schwartz 15 Blackthern Lane White Plains, N.Y.

6. Subject

Zionist Achie voments in Falestine

The Jewish Problem and the Ques: for its Solution

Class Strugglo in Falostine

Jorish Education in the Diaspora

The Amakoning of Jowish National Consciousness

Zionism or Nationalism in the Diaspora?



Alternative to Partition

Creative Cultural Tossibilities in Falostino

Unity of Israel is Indispensable for the Acquisition of Falestine

The Land and its Possibilities

Jowish Maticnalism - a Different Kind

Religion in Falostino

Theories of Zionism

Philosophic and Religious Aspects of Zionism

Samson A. Shain 4342 45th St. Long Island City, NY

Nathaniel S. Sharo New Orleans, La.

Joseph S. Shubow 96 Chestnut Eill Ave. Frighton, Mass.

Albert M. Shulman Temple Doth El South Bond, Ind.

1. Silverstone Toonsocket, R.I.

Moritz Speier 150 Mincola Dlvd. Mincola, L.I.

Loon Spitz 7410 97th Avo. Ozono Park, N.Y.

Milton Steinborg 50 E. 87th Street N.Y.C.

Dernard D. Stolper 755 E. 46th Street Eklyn, N.Y.

D.I. Treiger 210 N. G. Tacomo, Wash.

Jeromo Unger 5 Hooker Awenue Poughkoopsie, N.Y.

Colman A. Switman Tomplo Isrcel 137 N.E. 19th St. Miami, Fla. 7. Subject

Jovish National Fund Histadrut

Altornativo to Partition

Philosophy and Program of the Labor Factions

Alternative to Partition

(Farticularly adapted to German-Jowish audiences)

A History of American Zionism

Has Russia Solved the Jowish Froblem?

Have Jews Lisplaced Arabs? Frontiors of Pak stine, old and new

Economic Absorptive Capacity

Philosophic and Religious Aspects of Zionism

1 ... 4

CALIFORNIA

Gustave Goldstein, Ch. Los Angeles Dist.

CONNECTICUT REGION Rabbi Wm. P. Greenfield, Ch., (Waterbury) Abraham Goldstein, Hartford

GEORGIA Robert M. Travis, Ch. Atlanta Dist.

IOWA STATE Mrs. A. I. Blotcky, Des Moines

MICHIGAN

Lawrence W. Crohr, Ch. Detroit Dist. J.J. Drew, Iron Fiver, Mich. Chairman of Upper Peninsula Ragion . MIDWEST REGION Wm. M. Katz, Ch. Zionist Org. of Chicago Alex Himmelman, Ch. Milwoukee District I.A.Abrohams, Ch. Green Bay District

MINNESOTA

Herschel Horwitz, Ch. St. Paul District

MISSISSIPPI Rabbi Arthur Brodsy, Hattissburg Dist. Ch. RHODE ISLAND

NEW ENGLAND

Ralph Bass, Ch. NewEngland Region Coleman Silbert, Brookline, Mass. Joseph Goldberg, Worcester, Mass. Benj. F.Evarts, Holyoke, Mass. Louis E. Brown, Mattapan, Mass.

NEW JERSEY REGION

Henry Rosenbaum, Plainfieli, Chairman. Joseph Halbert, Ch. Altnatic City Dist. David Frankel, Ch. Trenton District

NEW YORK STATE

Rabbi Morris Adler, Ch. Buffalo District Joseph Goldstein, Ch. Rochaster Dist. Samuel Weinstein, Ch. Syrapuse Dist.

(HUDSON VALLEY REGION) Sol Reiter, Newburgh

(WESTCHESTER RECION) Charles Ress, Mount Varnon, Chairman (BRONX REGION)

Meyer Levy, Bronx Region Chairman

(BROOKLYN REGION. Louis J. Moss, Brooklyn Region Chair. Samuel Rothstein, Ch., Elatbush Dist. Wm. I.Siegel, Ch.East. Paw ay District

(LONG ISLAND REGION) Mordecai Konowitz, L.I.Region Chairman Sol Cohen, Richmond Hill District Rabbi Edward T. Sandrow, Far Rockaway (MANHATTAN) Herman W.Bernstein, Chairman Dist. #7 Leon Savage, Chairman District #10 OHIO VALLEY REGION Ir.A.L. Eisenberg, Cincinnati Senator Jacob Weiss, Ch. Indianapolis Dist. OHIC Fabbi Abba Hillel Silver, Cleveland Fabbi Barnett Brickmer, George Kloin, Eliot L. Kaplan, Ch. Toledo District Invid Schneider, Ch. Youngstown Dist. PENNSYLVANIA Dr. David Feldman, Ch. Philadelphia Dist. (TRI-STATE REGION) I.M. Jaffe, Butler, Pa., Chairman of Region. RabbiB.A. Lichter, Pittsburgh, Pa. Rabbi Henry R. Goldbargar, Altoona, Pa. Rabbi Abram Granowitz, Johnstown, Pa. A.B. Cohen, Soranton, Pa. Philip V. Marcus, Ch. Providence Dist. SEABOARD REGION Danial Elkison, Chair. of Regior (Balti.) Rabbi Isadore Breslau, Ch. WashingtonDist. Samuel Keiser, Ch. Baltimore District SOUTHWEST REGION David Derenstein, Ch. St. Louis District Hyman Gordon, Ch. Kansas City District TENNESSEE : Sam Shankman, Chair. Memphis District TEXAS Charles B.Spiner, Ch. Texas Zion. Assn. Benjamin Eisenstein, Schenectady, Chair.HADASSAH -- Mrs. Joseph Ehrlich, Detroit. ORDER SONS OF ZION - Dr. Marris J.Levine. N.Y.C. MASADA -- Israel Berman, N. Y. C.

Mr. Lipsky stated further that at the meeting of the Actions Committee in London a report was rendered of what has been done in Palestine by all elements of the population in the way of assessments voluntarily undertaken in order to help the unemployment situation. As a result the Yishub has contributed over \$200,000 to the unemployment fund, over and above the regular contributions with which everyone is assessed for the Koren Hayosed and Keren Kayemeth. Some of the Palestinian delegates stressed the fact that it isn't so much the amount of money that will be raised by the Zionists in the diaspora for the Mifde Hazioni, but in order to demonstrate that the Zionists of the world stand with the Zionists of Palestine in this sparit of secrifice. It was made clear that it was not intended to make any collections from any one who is not an enrolled Zionist, and that the collection is not to be made through a national campaign but locally through each Zionist District.

100

Dr. Wise asked whother it would not be well to call a conference of all Zionist organizations in America.

Mr. Lipsky believed that this night weaken the responsibility, since each organization would depend upon the other to raise the funds. As a matter of fact, Mr. Lipsky added, each organization had practically promised to undertake to raise this money.

Dr. Wise suggested that arrangements should be made to include the proceeds of the Mifde Hazioni in the UPA, to allay the fears of these who believe that this effort will interfere with the UPA.

Mr. Siegel pointed out that this effort may interfere with our membership campaign, since the three months between now and the Zienist Convention represent the peak of membership activity, and Zienists who have not yet paid their dues will feel that they are being asked to pay double.

Dr. Goldstein suggested that if the matter could wait, the Convention could be utilized for this special effort in behalf of the Mifde Hazioni, which in turn would lift the whole stimming of the Convention.

Mr. Margulies supported Dr. Goldstein's suggestion.

Mr. Lipsky urged that the amount of money should not be stressed but that overy individual Zionist should be impressed with the appeal and urged to do his best to match what is being done in Palestine. No high pressure methods should be used but Zionists are to be reminded of their duty through The New Palestine every week.

It was finally moved, seconded and carried

THAT a committee of three be named which shall submit to the next meeting of the Executive a plan for the carrying out of the program with regard to the Mifde Haziond.

-5-

COMMUNICATION FROM FEDERATION OF PALESTINE JEWS IN AMERICA:

The Secretary presented a communication from the Federation of Palestine Jows in America requesting the appointment of ZOA representatives to a conference on April 7th, for the purpose of inaugurating a campaign in the interest of Tetzeroth Haaretz.

Mr. Margulios was of the opinion that we should decline this invitation since such effort should be initiated by the ZOA

Dr. Wise reported that there was a great deal of discussion in London about the possibility of a vory large importation of Palestine products to America in systematic and organized fashion.

Mr. Imber suggested that there should be a special bureau in the ZOA to handle such matters.

Dr. Bornstoin pointed out that what has been done with regard to importing Palestine products by the few firms handling them now, has been much more harmful to Palestine than useful.

Dr. Goldstein proposed that this matter should be carefully considered by a subcommittee of the Executive.

It was moved, seconded and carried

THAT a committee of three be named which shall survey this entire matter and bring back a report to the Executive.

Mr. Rockor suggested that the subcommittee communicate with the American-Palestine Chamber of Commerce.

MASADA ANNIVERSARY:

The Secretary submitted an invitation from Masada, to members of the Executive, to attend their Fifth Anniversary colebration on April 7th.

It was decided that the Secretary be instructed to send an official invitation to the New York members of the Executive and Alministrative Committee.

PLACE OF NEXT CONVENTION:

A discussion took place regarding the city to be selected for the next Zionist Convention; the date already having been desided; namely July 2nd to 5th inclusive.

It was decided to choose between Detroit, Pittsburgh and Buffale as the next Convention City.

PALESTINE EXHIBIT AT NEW YORK WCYLD'S FAIR:

A. 5. 7

Mr. Weisgal stated that the Palestino exhibit at the World's Fair was initiated by the President of the Zionist Organization several months age, and it was through his efforts that it was crystallized into some form of corporate being and has already begun to function.

Mr. Weisgal roported further that Dr. Wise was Honorary President, George Backer, President, Dr. Goldstein, Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Lipsky, nember of the Board of the Corporation which has decided that the corporato form of organization shall be representative of the various organizations active in and for Falostine, including the Jowish National Fund, Hadassah, Poale Zion, otc., and that oach organization shall contributo a sum of memory toward the organization of the Palestine Exhibit. Accordingly the Keren Hayesod has decided to contribute \$5,000, the Jewish National Fund \$5,000, Contributions have also been made by Hadassah and others. At the last meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, it was decided that the Zionist Organization of "morica bo officially roprosented in the Corporation to the same extent that the other Zionist and Palastine groups are represented, and the rule was adopted of "no representation without taxation". This brings up the question of the 20A assuming financial responsibility equal to that of the Keren Hayesod and the Jowish National Fund. It is necessary to secure this sum from the 20A in view of the fact that the Palestine Exhibit was organized with the idea that \$35,000 would be available for purposes of organization and \$250,000 is required for the exhibit. Considerable progress has been made. A good site contrally located has been secured, consisting of 22,000 square feet, near the Hall of Religion.

Mr. Weisgal also stated that the Corporation had cortain plans which will make the Palestine Exhibit, in a certain respect, solf-liquidating, and there is also a possibility if the project is properly organized and the organizations meet their responsibility, that these organizations may be the beneficiaries of part of the fund they will have to underwrite. However, a considerable portion of the money pledged by the various Organizations has not yet been forthcoming, and it to enthinkable that the Zionist Organization of America should not be officially represented in the perperation and have its share in the undertaking. Therefore, Mr. Weisgal urged, the ZOA should also assume a definite financial responsibility equal to the Koren Hayesod's and Koren Kayemeth's, and take its rightful place in the Palestine Exhibit.

Mr. Siegel inquired how the project would be financed outside of the \$35,000 montioned.

Mr. Weiscal replied that it is proposed to ask the heads of the various communities throughout the country to appeal locally for financial assistance. There are other prospective sources of income which, Mr. Weisgal said are premature to report on at this time.

Mr. Margulies observed that if it **is** proposed to ask heads of Zionist Districts to secure funis, how would that be applied toward the ZOA rosponsibility. Dr. Goldstein stated that it is not necessary to arouse the interest of the Executive of the ZOA in this project. Moreover those who are close to it are convinced that it will be an extraordinary affair. Furthermore it should be recognized that in the absence of a government to initiate this project, as is the case with all other nations represented, it is the ZOA that takes the place of a government, and therefore it is the ZOA upon when devolves the chief responsibility. Dr. Goldstein added that when the matter of the ZOA's participation was first broached, the leaders were on their way to London and the matter was delayed. However, now that they have returned, the Executive should recommend a contribution of \$5,000, and the Finance Committee should find a way of making it available.

Mr. Rocker inquired who made the pledges totalling \$35,000 referred to by Mr. Weisgal.

Dr. "ise gave the following figures:

Koron Hayesod and I	eren Kayemet	h \$15,000
Hadassah	4	5,000
Migrachi and Poale	Zion	5,000
Hebrew University		2,500
Palestine Economic	Corp.	2,500
ZOA		5,000

Mr. Ress said that it was obvious that the ZOA will have to participate, but the Executive must give thought as to how this money is to be raised. Mr. Weinberg believed that this money could be secured from a small group at the furthcoming Convention, so that the ZOA treasury will not have to suffer. Arrangements might be made, however, to advance the money to the Corporation before the Convention.

It was finally moved, seconded and carried

THAT the ZOA invest the sum of \$5,000 in the preparations for the Palestine Exhibit at the World's Fair, with the understanding that every effort be made by the Executive to make good this contribution at the next Convention.

AMERICAN ZION COMMONWEALTH:

Mr. Lipsky called attention to a resolution adopted at the last Convention, urging the ZOA to establish in the United States a Palestine land solding agency and nothing has been done by the Executive thus far with regard to this resolution.

Mr. Lipsky stated further that the affairs of the American Zion Commonwealth had been gradually liquidated and all the obligations in the United States had been discharged. Moreover through the American Zion Commonwealth certain lands have been recovered for the Jewish people, which are of tromendous value, as the Haifa Bay area, for instance, and now that all disputes with regard to the Commonwealth have been settled, whatever is to be done in the United States with regard to land sales, should be done under the name of the American Zion Commonwealth as the agency of the ZOA, inasmuch as the ZOA had previously been the sufferer in credit and repute because of the complicated affairs of the Commonwealth. In this connection, Mr. Lipsky called attention to the fast that Mr. David Frieberger has given his time gratis for nine years to straightening out the affairs of the Commonwealth.

-8-

Mr. Lipsky suggested that Mr. Freiberger be authorized on behalf of the Executive to get in touch with the P.L.D.C. and discuss the whole matter with them, and present a report, with the understanding that in all this correspondence, the interests and rights of the ZOA should be asserted and protected.

Attention was called also to the fact that Mr. Morris Weinberg was very helpful in saving the American Zion Commonwealth by advancing the funds required by Carmelia.

It was finally moved, seconded and carried

. .

THAT a committee of three consisting of Messrs. Freiberger, Lipsky and Weinberg be appointed to make a further report on this matter.

Mr. Rocker added that the affairs of the American Zion Commonwealth had been very badly handled and left a bad impression upon the Jews of America. Even though it has eventually paid its debts, he did not think it should be resurrected and the ZOA should go into the land selling business.

Mr. Cowen observed that there is no harm in adopting the above resolution since it represents no conmitment.

CONTINUATION OF DISCUSSION ON ACTIONS COMMITTEE MEETING:

The discussion then reverted to the Actions Committee meeting and particularly the remarks of Mr. Ben Gurion. In this connection statements were made both by Mr. Lipsky and Dr. Wise.

Meeting adjourned 12 A.M.

Respectfully submitted

MORRIS MARGULIES Secretary

TO THE JEWISH PEOPLE IN THE DIASPORA

[undated]

At this grave and decisive hour in the history of the revival of our Homeland, we turn to the communities of Jewry throughout the world with the call: "Hagalila - On to Galilee!"

Since the reconstruction of the Homeland commenced there has never been, nor will there ever be any other course before us than to create and build, to redeen step by step, and lath by lath, in days of stress as in days of prosperity, to establish new undertakings, to progress from one position to the next. Only through constant effort to increase our possessions, to increase our land and multiply the numbers of its builders, only through the creation of hard facts that cannot be ignored, shall we strengthen our practical power in the land, so that meither from within nor from without will obstacles or forces of destruction check us. Only thus shall we advance steadily towards attainment of the great objective that history set for our generation, the revival of our people in the land of its fathers.

In the spirit of this historic undertaking the land organ of the Zionist Organisation, the Keren Kayemeth Leisrael, last year proclaimed the "On to Galilee!" Campaign for the redemption of land in the northern territory of the country. Hitherto the north has benefited only meagrely from the boon of Jewish creative effort. Its turn now had arrived. The sum of £500,000 was required to execute this great undertaking which would open a new gateway for the settlement of thousands of families. In the past year, the Keren Kayemoth has already made significant steps towards this goal.

This year we stand before the second stage of the "On to Galilee" effort. But it is of vital significance that the pace of the work be intensified. Prevailing circumstances render it imperative that in the present year a sum of £100,000 over and above its normal resources be placed at the disposal of the Keren (ayemeth for this effort. To attain this end all forces of the Zionist movement, wherever they be, must co-operate.

We appeal to the Zionist public throughout the world, to workers and to donors, to all who are loyal to Zion and its Upbuilding, to further the "On to Galilee" Campaign of the Keren Kayemeth at this serious juncture with all the power at their command. History will show that this hour, a fateful one in the task of the Upbuilding, was also pregnant with possibilities. Let us not fail. Join and bring others to join with you in this effort for the redemption of Galilee.

> (sgd) Dr. Chaim Weizmann, President of the World Zionist Organisation David Ben-Gurlon, President of the Zionist Executive

Dr. Selig Brodetzky,) Rabbi J.L.Fishman, (I. Gruenbaum,) Eliezer Kaplan, (Dr. F. Rothenstreich,) M. Shertck. (

Members of the Executive

[undoted]

<u>41ST ANNUAL CONVENTION</u> <u>ZIONIST ORGANIZATION OF AMERICA</u> <u>DETROIT, MICH</u>.

PROXIE LIST

A. Ball, Albany, N.Y. Rabbi Morton M. Berman, Chicago, Ill. Samuel Berman, New York City A. D. Braham, New York City Rabbi Arthur Brodoy, Hattiesburg, Miss. Dr. Aaron Burman, Syracuse, N. Y.

Israel S. Chipkin, New York City Charles A. Cowen, New York City

Albert K. Epstein, Chicago, Ill. Benj. F. Evarts, Holyoke, Mass.

Harry P. Fierst, New York City Abraham Goldberg, New York City Rabbi Henry E. Goldberger, Altoona, Pa. Rabbi Solomom Goldman, Chicago, Ill. Dr. Israel Geldstein, New York City Samuel Margoshes, New York City Morris Margulies, New York City Rabbi Irving Miller, Long Island

Jacob Rabinovitz, Boston, Mass. Charles Ress, New York City Bernard G. Richards, New York City Louis P. Rocker, New York City Dr. A. J. Rongy, New York City Moses Rubinson, New York City Jochanon I. Rudavsky, Brooklyn, N.Y.

Bernard Shelwin, New York City Carl Sherman, New York City Simon Shetzer, Detreit, Mich. Wm. I. Siegel, Brooklyn, N.Y. Abraham Spicehandler, Brooklyn, N.Y. Elihu D. Stone, Boston, Mass. Judge Mathan Sweedler, Brooklyn, N.Y. Robert Szold, New York City

B. Horwich, Chicago, Il.

Sidney E. Jaffe, Phila., Pa.

Samuel Kanarwogel, New York City Abraham Krumbein, New York City

Judgo Wm. M. Lowis, Phila., Pa. Louis Lipsky, New York City Sigmund Thau, Brooklyn, N.Y.

Morris Weinberg, Brooklyn, H.Y. Meyer W. Weisgal, New York City Dr. Stephen S. Wise, New York City Leo Wolfson, New York City

Harry Z. Zwolling, New Britain, Conn.